
 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 276140 

Please ask for Jackie Fair 
Email: Jackie.fair@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Audit and Standards Committee 
 
Monday, 24 March 2014 
10.00 am 

Oak Room, County Buildings, Stafford 

 
John Tradewell 

Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation 
14 March 2014 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1. Apologies  
   
2. Declarations of Interest  
   
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 9 December 2013 (Pages 1 - 6) 
   
4. Minutes of the Special Panel re: Appointments to the 

Independent Remuneration Panel - 26 February 2014 
(Pages 7 - 8) 

   
5. Proposed Changes to the Constitution  
   

a) Recording Votes on Budget and Precept Setting Decisions 
at County Council Meetings 

(Pages 9 - 12) 

   
b) Members' Code of Conduct (Pages 13 - 20) 
   
 Reports of the Director of Democracy, Law and 

Transformation 
 

 

   
6. External Audit Plan 2013/14 (Pages 21 - 56) 
   
 Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers  
   
7. Staffordshire Pension Fund - External Audit Plan 2013/14 (Pages 57 - 74) 
   
 Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers  
   
8. Annual Certification Report 2012/13 (Pages 75 - 76) 
   
 Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers  



 
   
9. Annual Report on Information Governance (Pages 77 - 92) 
   
 Report of the Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation  
   
10. Procurement and Financial Regulations (Pages 93 - 94) 
   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
11. Work Programme for the Audit and  Standards 

Committee/ Member Training Update 
(Pages 95 - 98) 

   
 Report of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   
12. Exclusion of the Public  
   
 The Chairman to move:- 

 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business which involve the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 
1972 as indicated below”. 
 

 
PART TWO 
(reports in this section are exempt) 
 

 

   
13. Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2013 

(exemption paragraph 3) 
(Pages 99 - 100) 

   
14. Internal Audit Reports - High Risk Reviews plus Limited 

Assurance Reviews plus Special Investigations 
(exemption paragraph 3) 

 

   
  

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 
 

   
a) Infrastructure plus - Invitation to Submit Final Bids (Pages 101 - 

112) 
   
b) Debt Recovery Processes - Legal Services Follow-up 

Review 
(Pages 113 - 
132) 

   
 Reports of the Director of Finance and Resources  
   

 



 
 

Membership 
 

Frank Chapman 
William Day 
Derek Davis, OBE 
Janet Eagland 
Michael Greatorex 
Derrick Huckfield 
Keith James 
Kevin Jackson 
 

Philip Jones 
Alison Spicer 
Martyn Tittley 
Diane Todd 
Conor Wileman 
Caroline Wood 
Mike Worthington 
 

 





- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Audit and Standards Committee Meeting held on 9 December 2013 
 

Present:   
 
 Frank Chapman 

William Day 
Derek Davis, OBE 
Janet Eagland 
Michael Greatorex 
Derrick Huckfield 
Keith James 
 

Kevin Jackson 
Philip Jones 
Martyn Tittley 
Conor Wileman 
Caroline Wood 
Mike Worthington 
 

 
Apologies: Alison Spicer and Diane Todd 
 
PART ONE 
 
286. Declarations of Interest 
 
Members declared their/or their partners membership of the Staffordshire Pension Fund 
as follows:- 
 

Kevin Jackson – Wife is a member of the Staffordshire Pension Fund 
Martyn Tittley – Member of Staffordshire Pension Fund 

 
287. Minutes of the Meeting held  on 16 September 2013 
 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2013 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 
Arising thereon – Minute number 278 – In response to a question, Members were 
informed that this matter had been referred to County Council and would be discussed 
at the next full meeting scheduled for Thursday 12 December 2013.  
 
288. Annual Report on Health, Safety and Wellbeing Performance 
 
Members considered the Annual Report on Health, Safety and Wellbeing Performance 
2012/13. 
 
The report covered the period from 01 April 2012 – 31 March 2013 and identified 
progress against the key action points outlined in the action plan and identified key 
priorities for 2013/14. 
 
Key achievements included:- 
 

• Absence levels reduced to below public sector benchmarks and in line with 

private sector levels 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

- 2 - 
 

• Became ‘Trusted Partners’ for the delivery of British Institute of Learning 

Disabilities accredited ‘Managing Actual and Potential Aggression’ training 

allowing improved advice and training for employees 

• Communicated effective management arrangements to prevent spread of 

Norovirus within Council settings. Minimal impact of virus compared to national 

picture 

• Completed 226 Health and Safety Audits 

• Successfully set up Pilot Physiotherapy Service 

• Managed and responded to emergency situations and serious 

accidents/incidents 

Incidents occurring during the period included a lift engineering contractor who was 
injured during the removal of a small goods lift when he entered the shaft beneath 
the carriage and a serious fall from height incident at a school which was under HSE 
investigation. 
 
The report detailed performance data as a result of ill health. In response to a 
question, Members were informed that absences from work owing to alcohol or drug 
misuse formed a very small percentage and would be included in the psychological 
ill health figures. 
 
Members expressed concern that some 30% of schools had not provided a copy of 
their completed/reviewed Fire Risk Assessment during the last 12 months to the 
Health & Safety Team. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager explained that 
the team chased all schools several times for the information.  She explained that 
the statistic means that 30% of the schools had not returned a completed annual fire 
risk assessment to her. It is a legal requirement to have an up to date fire risk 
assessment but not necessarily to review it annually. However to promote good 
practice the council asked schools to review them annually. A Member suggested 
that the names of those schools that had not returned their Fire Risk Assessment 
should be published and that School Governors should be encouraged to pursue 
their school’s returns. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager agreed to remind 
all schools of their accountabilities regarding fire risk assessments. For the 2013/14 
return she would ensure that the Chair of Governors of those schools who do not 
complete the return are notified and a H&S visit would be undertaken to remind them 
of the importance this document and the legal accountabilities placed on duty 
holders (which included the Headteacher and Governors) in the Fire Safety Order. 
 
A Member commented that although employees were now referred to the 
physiotherapy service there had been some 49,856 FTE days lost as a result of 
musculoskeletal ill health. The Manager explained that all staff had to complete a 
return to work interview to discourage one day sickness and those referred to the 
physiotherapy service were given exercises and support. The period September 
2012 – March 2013 had seen significant improvements with a reduction of more than 
20% in musculoskeletal ill health absences and this had included the time of year 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

when absences were normally at their highest, indicating that the preventative 
service was having a positive impact on absence. 
 
A Member commented on the investigation into the accidental disturbance of 
asbestos containing materials at a primary school which had resulted in the HSE 
taking legal action against a number of parties including the Council. The Manager 
explained that a briefing session had been arranged for all schools on how to plan 
for any work they undertook regarding asbestos. Premises managers were trained 
and every school had an asbestos register. 
 
Key actions for 2013/14 included: 

• Management of contractors activities 

• Improve employee psychological early intervention support; and  

• Embed the Employee Wellbeing Strategy to encourage and support staff to 
take personal responsibility for their health and wellbeing. 

 
RESOLVED - 
(a) That the annual report on Health, Safety and Wellbeing performance 2012/13 is 

received and noted. 
 
(b) All schools that had not completed a return in 2013/14 exercise, would have this 
reported to their Chair of Governors and receive a visit from a member of the Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Team. 
 
289. Independent Remuneration Panel Appointments 
 

Members considered a report of the Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation 
on the Independent Remuneration Panel appointments. 
 
The County Council was required to establish and maintain an Independent 
Remuneration Panel to provide advice and recommendations to the Council on its 
Members Allowances Scheme.  The County Council had previously extended the 
period of office for persons as members of the Panel for a further period of 12 
months to 31 March 2014.  It was considered to be good practice to refresh the 
Panel with suitable independent people and therefore the Council on 10 October 
2013 gave delegated authority to the Audit and Standards Committee to confirm the 
appointment of a special panel of 5 members to select (if appropriate) suitably 
qualified new members.   
A member queried  the qualities attributed to a ‘good candidate’ on the Panel and the 
Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation explained that there was a role 
description and that previously, the panel attracted a wide spread of applicants with 
different abilities. 
 
RESOLVED -  
(a) That the necessary arrangements be made to advertise the appointment of 

members to the Independent Remuneration Panel. 
  
(b)  That a Special Panel be appointed consisting of five members of the Audit and 

Standards Committee to be nominated by the Leaders of the Controlling Group 
and the Major Minority Group of the Council. 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

 
(c) That arrangements be made for the Special Panel to select the preferred 

candidates to sit on the Independent Remuneration Panel. 
 
290. Annual Audit Letter 2012/13 
 

Members considered the Annual Audit Letter 2012/13 from PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(PWC) which summarised results of their 2013 audit work. The report covered: 
 

• Accounts 

• Use of Resources 

• Accounting systems and systems of internal control 

• Annual Governance Statement 

• Whole of Government Accounts 

• Summary of recommendations 

• Certification of claims and returns 

• Other Responsibilities  

• Audit Completion 
 
Mr. James Howse (PWC) updated members on three “outstanding issues” 
referenced in the report: 
 

• The Whole of Government Accounts work had now been completed with issues 
arising 

• The matter raised by an elector had been investigated by internal audit and 
reviewed by PWC, who had concluded that no further action was required 

• The certificate of completion was now in place following a review of the Pension 
Fund Annual Report 

 
RESOLVED – that the Annual Audit Letter 2012/13 and update from PWC be 
received and noted. 

 
291. Internal Audit Plan Update 2013/14 
 

Members considered a report of the Director of Finance and Resources on progress 
made against the 2013/14 Audit Plan.  The annual plan, approved by the Committee 
in July 2013, continued to be reviewed to ensure that areas originally included 
remained relevant and reflected the risk profile of the organisation.  Internal audit 
was currently undertaking a number of additional audits within new risk areas which 
had arisen since July – namely the replacement banking contract and the 
introduction of the pension’s payroll within the Pensions Department. 
 
Delivery against the 2013/14 Audit Plan was summarised in the report. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That progress made against the 2013/13 Audit Plan is noted. 

 
(b) That progress made on the implementation of higher level recommendations is 

noted. 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

 
292. Future of Local Audit Bill - Update 
 

Members considered the report of the Director of Finance and Resources on the 
future of the Local Audit Bill. 
 
The report outlined the next stages of the process, in particular the further round of 
consultation relating to draft regulations required to allow the Bill to become 
operational. It was agreed that the County Councils response was to be discussed 
and approved by the Chairman of the Audit & Standards Committee prior to 
submission to the DCLG.  
 
The government introduced the Local Audit and Accountability Bill into Parliament on 
9 May 2013. The Bill successfully completed its passage through the House of Lords 
and the amended Bill was presented to the House of Commons where it was 
currently being debated.  It was anticipated that the Bill would receive Royal Ascent 
during Spring 2014 and a further Audit and Standards Committee member briefing 
would then take place. 
 
The Bill set out the details of the new local audit framework and made a number of 
specific provisions.    
 
The indicative timetable for the implementation of the arrangements was provided in 
an appendix to the report. In this regard the Audit Commission had written to the 
Council to confirm the appointment of PWC as its external auditor for a period of five 
years from 2012/13. 
 
A member expressed concern at losing the Audit Commission role and considered 
that there should not be a comfortable relationship between the external auditor and 
the County Council. In response it was explained that the National Audit Office would 
take on responsibility for preparing the code of audit practice and guidance, with the 
Financial Reporting Council becoming the overall supervisor for local audit. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the update report regarding the future arrangements for Local Public Audit 

be received and noted 
 

(b) That the arrangements for the approval of the response to the Audit Commission 
on the draft regulation consultation exercise be agreed 

 
 
293. Audit Commission National Fraud Initiative 2012 
 

Members considered a report of the Director of Finance and Resources on the 
progress made to date on investigating the potential date of matches received from 
the Audit Commission in February 2013 as part of the 2012 National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI) exercise. 
 
The NFI data matching exercise involved the Authority submitting payroll data and 
other relevant data to the Audit Commission who then matched it against data sets 

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

from other Local Authorities and the Department of Works and Pensions.  Potential 
matches had then been identified and referred back to the Authority for investigation 
in February 2013. Progress made to date in investigating these was appended to the 
report. 
 
Members were pleased to note that no major issues relevant to the Authority had so 
far been identified. However, overpayments of approximately £21,574 (relating to 14 
cases) had been identified and action to recover the overpayments had commenced. 
Half the cases related to payments for adults accommodated in private residential 
care/nursing homes whose placements had continued to be funded by the Authority 
after the individual’s death. The remaining 7 cases related to overpayments arising 
where an occupational pension had continued to be paid to an individual after they 
had died. 
 
A number of matches remained outstanding at this point in the cycle and the results 
of this work would be reported to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED - That the progress made to date on investigating the potential data 
matches received from the Audit Commission in February 2013 as part of the 2012 
National Fraud Initiative exercise be noted. 

  
 
294. Work Programme for the Audit and Standards Committee/ Member Training 
Update 
 

RESOLVED - That the indicative work programme for the next meeting of the 
Committee as submitted by the Director of Finance and Resources, be approved. 

 
 
295. Exclusion of the Public 
 

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 
1972 as indicated: 

 
 
296. Internal Audit Reports - High Risk Reviews plus Limited Assurance Reviews 
plus Special Investigations 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 6



�

�

��������	
������������������	
��������������������������	���������
�������������	�������������������

�
�����������

�
� 	
�����
�
���

������	
������
������	�����
�

����������
��
�
�����������
�

�� !�"#$�
�
%&� ��������	
������������������	���'���������������
�
 $�"()$*�+���
��������������������������������������������
� �!"�#��������������

����������� �������
���
�$�
�
�&� $,�����	��	
������������
�
%�
����������������&����������������������������������'����������������������'�����
�������������� ���������������&�����������
�����
������������������
�
��
��������
�����
���(��������!)�*
��
������+��������,��
�-����������)�����.!�
�������
�������'$�
�
-&� $,������������	
������������������	���'���������������
�
 $�"()$*�+���
��������������������������������������������
� �!"�#��������������

����������� �������
���
�$�
�
.&� �������	���
	���	���������	��
�
%����
���'
������������
��������������/�����������0������
������
���
�������������
�����������������
��(�������1�2�)�����
���(�
��
�������������3����
�
��
���4$!�2������
�
'����
� ��������
��������������
�����
��� 3�5�����
3�6�
��25�����
����������������������
������������ ��������'������ �
'��
������������������������ ���������&��������
�������
'����������������������������
�����������������������$�
�
7���������������'�����&��
����
����
������'�����
�������������
������������

����
������������
���������������'��
�����������������������
������������������
/�����������0������
������
�������'��
����
�����,�����%�����
���7���
��7���
 $�
%�����
���
��
�������
�����������
����������������
����
������
����� �'��������
����������
�����
������������������������������������������$�
�
 $�"��$#*�!"��/*0!��#*��!�#*� *���"��0!!$$�8���
������)�����
���
(�
��
������������������������������������ ����������
��,�����%�����
���7���
��
7���
 ������������
�������������������/�����������0������
������
���*���5�����������
������������
����
���� �����������+$��
�
�
�

���������
�

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



Page 8



Audit and Standards Committee – Monday 24 March 2014 
County Council – Thursday 15 May 2014 

 
 

Proposed Changes to the Constitution –  
Recording of Votes on Budget and Precept Setting Decisions made at 

County Council meetings 
 
 

1. Recommendation: 
 
1.1 That Council be recommended to approve the amendments to Paragraph 
14.9 of Section 12 of the Constitution, as detailed in paragraph 3 of this report, 
relating to Procedural Standing Orders to provide for the recording of votes at 
full County Council meetings on decisions on Budget and Precept setting.  
 
Report of the Director for Democracy, Law and Transformation 
 
 

2. Background 
 
2.1 The Constitution currently provides for the taking of a ‘named vote’ at full 
council meetings (i.e. the recording of how each member voted on a particular 
issue) where 15 members stand and request such action.  

 
2.2 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2014 came into force on 25 February 2014 requiring the taking of 
a named vote at all Council meetings where key budget and precept setting 
decisions are being made. 

 
2.3 In issuing these new regulations the Minister for Communities and Local 
Government specifically wrote to Leaders and Chief Executives explaining 
that the move was part of his commitment to transparency and democratic 
accountability and aimed to increase public confidence in councils and their 
elected representatives. 
 
2.4 The Minister also called on Councils to demonstrate their commitment to 
transparency by voluntarily adopting the new measure at this years budget 
setting meetings whether or not the regulations were in force.  That request 
was adhered to by the County Council at its meeting on 13 February 2014 at 
the time of setting the Budget for 2014/15. 

 
 

3. Required Changes to Procedural Standing Orders 
 

3.1 Section 12, paragrapgh14.9 of the Constitution refers to voting 
arrangements at Council meetings. The section is reproduced below with the 
required amendments shown in bold text: 

Agenda Item 5a

Page 9



 
14.9 Voting 
 
14.9.1 With the exception of votes referred to at paragraph 14.9.5 

below, voting will, in the first instance be determined by voice ‘aye’ 
or ‘no’, but the Chairman may and, if the decision is challenged 
must, take a show of hands. 

 
14.9.2 For votes other than those referred to at 14.9.5 below, fifteen 

Members may stand and request a ‘named vote’, meaning that the 
names for and against the motion or amendment be recorded in the 
Minutes.  The Chief Executive will call the name of each Member 
present who will then vote ‘aye’ or ‘no’.  There is no requirement for 
Members to participate in named votes and they can abstain. 

 
14.9.3 A Member may, immediately after a vote which is not a named vote 

is taken, request that a record of whether the Member voted for, or 
against, the motion, or abstained be made in the minutes of that 
meeting. 

 
14.9.4 Where there are equal votes cast for a motion or amendment the 

Chairman or the person presiding may exercise a second or casting 
vote. 

 
14.9.5  Where the Council is voting on the setting of the Budget and/or 

Precept a named vote MUST be taken, recording the names of 
those members who voted for a decision, or against the 
decision or abstained from voting. 

 

Page 10



 
 
Appendix 1 
 
1.0. Equalities Implications 
 

1.1 None  
 
 
2.0. Legal Implications 
 
2.1 The amendment to the Constitution is required under the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 
 
 
3.0 Resource and Value for Money Implications 
 

3.1. The proposal does not have cost or resourcing implications.   
 
 
4.0 Risk Implications 
 

4.1. Failure to comply with the new regulations creates a risk of challenge 
to the legality of Budget and Precept setting decisions. 

 
 
Report Author: 
 
Author’s name: Julie Plant 
Telephone No: (01785) 276135 
E-mail:  Julie.plant@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12



Local Members 
Interest 

  

 
Audit and Standards Committee – 24 March 2014 

County Council – 15 May 2014 
 

Proposed Changes to the Constitution –  
Amendments to Local Code of Conduct for Members 

 
Recommendations  
 
1. That Council be recommended to approve the proposed amendments to the 

Local Code of Conduct as detailed in paragraph 7 below.  
 
Report of Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation 
 
Background 
 

2. The Localism Act 2011 introduced new arrangements for dealing with Members’ 
conduct and the registration of their financial interests.  A local Code of Conduct 
for members was considered and endorsed by the County Council at the Annual 
meeting on 17 May 2012 and again on 19 July 2012 to incorporate the 
requirements for Members to register their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests.  The 
Code continues to promote the seven ‘Nolan principles’ for standards in public 
life. 

 
Reasons for Proposed Changes to the Code 
 
3. The Bribery Act 2010 came in to force in July 2011 and includes possible criminal 

offences with penalties including imprisonment of up to 10 years in respect of 
both the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitality.   Our Auditors have 
recommended that these offences should be specifically included within our 
Code of Conduct to assist members to focus on the appropriateness, or 
otherwise, of offering or accepting gifts or hospitality.   

 
4. I am recommending that we put this in context through the addition of paragraphs 

on gifts and hospitality more widely. It is occasionally entirely appropriate to offer 
or accept gifts or hospitality but members, and officers, need to consider each 
occasion and make their decision carefully.  Additional support and guidance on 
individual decisions is available from Member and Democratic Services or the 
Monitoring Officer. 

 
5. In proposing an update to the Code I have taken the opportunity to consider 

whether any further changes might be appropriate.  The Planning Committee 
adopts its own Protocol for members to follow when considering applications 

Agenda Item 5b

Page 13



submitted to them.  That Protocol is aimed at ensuring that in the planning 
process there are no grounds for suggesting that a decision of the Planning 
Committee has been unfair, biased, partial or not well founded in any way.  The 
inclusion of the Protocol in the Code of Conduct would provide a more complete 
reference document. 

 

6. Finally, as there are specific mechanisms for dealing with complaints of alleged 
breaches of the Code of Conduct by members, it is appropriate for the document 
to include reference to that complaints system. 

 
7. Attached at Appendix 2 is a copy of the current Code of Conduct with the 

amendments proposed above shown in bold text.   
 

Appendix 1 
 
 
Equalities implications: None 
 
Legal implications: None 
 
Resource and Value for money implications: None relating to this report.  
 
Risk implications: Whilst there is no legal requirement to make reference to 
gifts and hospitality or the Bribery Act 2010 within the member Code it is 
intended to assist members in making all decisions regarding the offer or 
acceptance of the same. 
 
Report author: 
 
Author’s Name: Ann-Marie Davidson, Member and Democratic Services 
Telephone No:  (01785) 276131 
Room No: Room 4, County Buildings 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



APPENDIX 2 
 

STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 

 
Principles of the Code 
 
As a member or co-opted member of Staffordshire County Council I have 
responsibility to represent the community and work constructively with our 
staff and partner organisations to secure better social, economic and 
environmental outcomes for all. 

 
In accordance with the Localism Act provisions, when acting in this capacity I 
am committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the following 
principles to achieve best value for our residents and maintain public 
confidence in this authority. 
 
SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the 
public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other 
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.  
 
INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any 
financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might 
seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties.  
 
OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public 
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards 
and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.  
 
ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their 
decisions and actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever 
scrutiny is appropriate to their office.  
 
OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all 
the decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their 
decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly 
demands.  
 
HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private 
interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any 
conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest.  
 
LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these 
principles by leadership and example. 
 
 
 

Page 15



 
 
General Undertaking 
 
When acting in my role of member of Staffordshire County Council my 
conduct will in particular address the statutory principles of the code of 
conduct by: 
 

• Championing the needs of residents - the whole community and in a 
special way your constituents, including those that did not vote for you, 
and put their interests first. 

 

• Dealing with representations and enquiries from residents, members of 
the community and visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially 

 

• Not allow other pressures, including the financial interest of myself or 
others connected with me to deter me from pursuing constituents’ 
casework, the interest of Staffordshire County Council or the good 
governance of the authority in a proper manner 

 

• Exercising independent judgement and not compromising my position by 
placing myself under obligations to outside individuals or organisations 
who might seek to influence the way I perform my duties as a member of 
the authority 

 

• Listening to the interests of all parties, including relevant advice from 
statutory and other professional officers, taking all relevant information 
into consideration, remaining objective and making decisions on merit 

 

• Being accountable for my decisions and co-operate when scrutinised 
internally and externally, including by local residents 

 

• Contributing to making the authority’s decision making processes as 
open and transparent as possible to enable residents to understand the 
reasoning behind those decisions and to be informed when holding me 
and other members to account but restricting access to information when 
the wider public interest or the law requires it  (Being aware of the 
potential for information passed through social networking media to be 
distributed much more widely than intended by the author) 

 

• Behaving in accordance with all the authority’s legal obligations, 
alongside any requirements within the authority’s policies, protocols and 
procedures, including with regard to confidentiality and on the use of the 
authority’s resources 

 

• Valuing colleagues and staff and engage with them in an appropriate 
manner and one that underpins the mutual respect that is essential to 
good local government 

 

Page 16



• Always treating people with respect, including those organisations and 
members of the public I engage with and those I work alongside 

 

• Providing leadership through behaving in accordance with these 
principles when championing the interest of the community and other 
organisations as well as within the authority 

 
Registration and Disclosure of Interests 
 

1. The interests which you are required to register with the County Council’s 
Monitoring Officer (Director of Law and Democracy) are called Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and are defined in section 5 below. 

 

2. Any such interest must be registered within 28 days of the adoption of this 
Code (19th July 2012) or within 28 days of being elected (or re-elected) or 
appointed (or re-appointed), whichever is relevant. 

 
3. All interests notified to the Monitoring Officer (with the exception of such 

interests defined in paragraph 6 below) will be included in the register of 
interests 

 
4. A copy of the register of interests will be available for public inspection and 

will be published on the County Council’s website. 
 
5. A ‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner, 

ie your spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil 
partners, (but only where you are aware that your partner has the interest) 
within the following descriptions: 

 

SUBJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from Staffordshire 
County Council) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by you or your partner in connection 
with you carrying out duties as a member or 
towards your election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you or 
your partner (or a body in which you or your 
partner has a beneficial interest) and 

Page 17



Staffordshire County Council- 
(a) under which goods or services are to 

be provided or works are to be 
executed; 

and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within 
the area of Staffordshire County Council 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of Staffordshire 
County Council for a month or longer 
 

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
(a) the landlord is Staffordshire County 

Council 
and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or 

your partner has a beneficial interest 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body 
where- 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of 
Staffordshire County Council; and 

(b) either- 
 
(i) the total nominal value of the 

securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which you or your 
partner has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class 

 

 
6. Where you consider that disclosure of the details of any Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interest could lead you, or a person connected with you, being 
subject to violence or intimidation if the interest is entered on the register, 
then, if the Monitoring Officer agrees, copies of the register that are 
available for public inspection and any published version of the register will 
exclude details of the interest but may state that you have an interest the 
details of which are withheld. 

 

Page 18



7. Where it becomes apparent to you at a meeting of the County Council (or 
Committee, sub-Committee, Joint Committee or Joint Sub-Committee of 
the County Council) that you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a 
matter which is to be or is being considered at the meeting that is not 
included on the register of interests then; 
(i) you must disclose the interest to the meeting, 
(ii) unless the interest is the subject of a pending notification, you must 

notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. 
 
9. Where you are present at a meeting of the County Council (or Committee, 

sub-Committee, Joint Committee or Joint Sub-Committee of the County 
Council) and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter which 
is to be or is being considered at the meeting then  
(i) you may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting, 

and 
(ii) you may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting, 
unless you have a written dispensation from the County Council in respect 
of either or both (i) or (ii) above. 
 

10. The County Council’s Standing Orders require that if you have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter under discussion at a meeting 
of the County Council (or Committee, sub-Committee, Joint Committee or 
Joint Sub-Committee of the County Council) you must notify the Chairman 
that you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in the matter and the 
nature of the interest, and leave the meeting room until consideration of 
the item in question is concluded. 

 
11. Section 34 of the Localism Act sets out a number of offences relating to 

the notification and disclosure of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, 
participating in matters in which you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
and knowingly or recklessly providing false or misleading information in 
relation to your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests.  All of these offences are 
subject to criminal penalties which include a fine of up to £5000 and 
disqualification from being a Councillor for up to 5 years. 

 
Gifts and Hospitality 
 
12. The acceptance, or offering of, gifts and hospitality by members is 

not merely an administrative issue; it reflects directly upon the public 
perception of members and of the authority and may have criminal 
offence implications.  

 
13. It may be entirely appropriate to accept an offer, or to make one, but 

you must give consideration to the appropriateness of your actions 
together with how that action may be perceived by someone looking 
on.  

 
14. A particular concern to bear in mind is that you should do nothing 

which might be considered to place yourself – or others within the 

Page 19



authority - under any financial or other obligation to outside 
individuals or organisations.   

 
15. You should note that, in respect of both the giving and receiving of 

gifts and hospitality, there are possible criminal offences under the 
Bribery Act 2010 with penalties including imprisonment of up to 10 
years. 

 
16. If you receive, or refuse the offer of, any gifts or hospitality worth 

over £25 in connection with your role as a member of the County 
Council then you will need to complete the relevant form: 
http://solapps.staffordshire.gov.uk/SCC/CXO/GiftsHospitality/ 

 
17. Should you require it, advice and assistance is available from 

Member and Democratic Services or the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Planning Committee Members’ Guidance Protocol 
 
18. In addition to this Members’ Code of Conduct there is further 

guidance for members of the Planning Committee. The aim of the 
Guidance Protocol is to ensure that in the planning process there are 
no grounds for suggesting that a decision of the Planning Committee 
has been unfair, biased, partial or not well founded in any way. 
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standard
s/complaining/complaints.aspx 

Complaints 

19. If a member of the public is unhappy about the way that a member 
has behaved, they may complain to the Monitoring Officer of 
Staffordshire County Council.  
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standard
s/complaining/complaints.aspx 

 

Page 20



www.pwc.co.uk

Staffordshire County
Council
External Audit Plan 2013/14

Government and
Public Sector

March 2014

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6

P
a
g
e

 2
1



Staffordshire County Council PwC Contents

Code of Audit Practice and

Statement of Responsibilities

of Auditors and of Audited

Bodies

In April 2010 the Audit Commission

issued a revised version of the

‘Statement of responsibilities of

auditors and of audited bodies’. It is

available from the Chief Executive

of each audited body. The purpose

of the statement is to assist auditors

and audited bodies by explaining

where the responsibilities of

auditors begin and end and what is

to be expected of the audited body in

certain areas. Our reports and

management letters are prepared in

the context of this Statement.

Reports and letters prepared by

appointed auditors and addressed

to members or officers are prepared

for the sole use of the audited body

and no responsibility is taken by

auditors to any Member or officer

in their individual capacity or to

any third party.

Executive summary 2

Audit approach 3

Risk of fraud 15

Your PwC team 17

Your audit fees 18

Appendices 20

Appendix A: Independence threats and safeguards 21

Appendix B: Communications Plan 23

Appendix C: Recent developments 24

Appendix D: Audit quality 25

Appendix E: Other engagement information 29

Contents

P
a
g
e

 2
2



Staffordshire County Council PwC 2

Background
We have prepared this audit plan to provide the Audit and
Standards Committee of Staffordshire County Council (the
‘Authority’) with information about our responsibilities as
external auditors and how we plan to discharge them for the
audit of the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

This document also includes our planned audit approach to
the audit of the pension fund accounting statements.

Framework for our audit
We are appointed as your auditors by the Audit Commission
as part of a national framework contract and consequently
we are required to incorporate the requirements of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice 2010
for local government bodies (the ‘Audit Code’) as well as the
requirements of International Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland) (‘ISAs’).

The remainder of this document sets out how we will
discharge these responsibilities and we welcome any
feedback or comments that you may have on our approach.

We look forward to discussing our report with you on 24
March 2014. Attending the meeting from PwC will be
Richard Bacon.

Our Responsibilities
Our responsibilities are as follows:

Perform an audit of the accounts and pension fund accounting
statements in accordance with the Auditing Practice Board’s
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs (UK&I)).

Report to the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the
consolidation pack the Authority is required to prepare for the
Whole of Government Accounts.

Form a conclusion on the arrangements the Authority has
made for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

Consider the completeness of disclosures in the Authority’s
annual governance statement, identify any inconsistencies with
the other information of which we are aware from our work
and consider whether it complies with CIPFA / SOLACE
guidance.

Consider whether, in the public interest, we should make a
report on any matter coming to our notice in the course of the
audit.

Determine whether any other action should be taken in relation
to our other responsibilities under the Audit Commission Act.

Issue a certificate that we have completed the audit in
accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act
1998 and the Code of Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Executive summary

P
a
g
e

 2
3



Staffordshire County Council PwC 3

Our audit is risk based which means that we focus on the areas that matter. We have carried out a risk assessment for 2013/14
prior to considering the impact of controls, as required by auditing standards, which also draws on our understanding of your
business.

We determine if risks are significant, elevated or normal and whether we are concerned with fraud, error or judgement as this
helps to drive the design of our testing procedures:

Significant Those risks with the highest potential for material misstatement due to a combination of their size,
nature and likelihood and which, in our judgement, require specific audit consideration.

Elevated Although not considered significant, the nature of the balance/area requires specific consideration.

Normal We perform standard audit procedures to address normal risks in all other material financial
statement line items.

Auditing Standards require us to include two fraud risks as significant:

Management override of controls:

“Management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of management’s ability to manipulate accounting
records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. Although the level of risk of management override of controls will vary from entity to entity, the risk is
nevertheless present in all entities. Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could occur, it is a risk of
material misstatement due to fraud and thus a significant risk.” ISA 240 paragraph 31; and

Revenue recognition:

“When identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement due to fraud, the auditor shall, based on a
presumption that there are risks of fraud in revenue recognition, evaluate which types of revenue, revenue
transactions or assertions given rise to such risks.” ISA 240 paragraph 26.

Audit approach
Our audit engagement begins
with an evaluation of the
Authority on our ‘acceptance
& continuance database’
which highlights an overall
engagement risk score and
highlights areas of
heightened risk.

P
a
g
e

 2
4



Staffordshire County Council PwC 4

Both these fraud related risks are included in our risk assessment. A summary of the audit risks identified for 2013/14 is set
out below which we consider to be either significant or elevated in relation to our audit for the year ended 31 March 2014, with
reference to which element of our audit opinion (County Council accounts, Value for Money or Pension Fund accounts) these
risks relate to. Further information along with our planned audit response is provided on the following pages.

Risk arising Potential impact upon PwC work Categorisation for
accounts risks

Accounts true and
fair opinion

Value for money
conclusion

Management override of controls
(including Pension Fund accounts)

u Significant

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure
recognition

u Significant

Education Support Services Group
Accounting/Joint Venture

u u Significant / N/a

PFI waste scheme u Elevated

The Medium Term Financial Strategy and
savings requirements

u N/a

P
a
g
e

 2
5



Staffordshire County Council PwC 5

Main Council Audit Financial Statements Risks

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Management override of
controls

ISA (UK&I) 240 requires that we
plan our audit work to consider the
risk of fraud, which is presumed to
be a significant risk in any audit. In
every organisation, management
may be in a position to override the
routine day to day financial controls
in order to manipulate the financial
statements. Accordingly, for all of
our audits, we consider this risk and
adapt our audit procedures
accordingly.

Significant As part of our assessment of your control environment we
will consider those areas where management could use
discretion outside of the financial controls in place to
misstate the financial statements. We will also test the
operation of some controls as part of our interim audit
visit and consider the level of assurance provided by
Internal Audit regarding management’s ability to override
controls.

We will perform procedures to:

Review the appropriateness of accounting policies and
estimation bases, focusing on any changes not driven
by amendments to reporting standards;

Test the appropriateness of journal entries and other
year-end adjustments, targeting higher risk items
such as those that affect the reported deficit/surplus;

Review accounting estimates for bias and evaluate
whether judgment and estimates used are reasonable
(for example pension scheme assumptions, valuation
and impairment assumptions);

Evaluate the business rationale underlying significant
transactions outside the normal course of business;

Test exceptional and unusual items arising from bank
and other reconciliations; and

Perform ‘unpredictable’ procedures targeted on fraud
risks.

We may perform other audit procedures if necessary.

P
a
g
e

 2
6



Staffordshire County Council PwC 6

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a
presumption that there are risks of
fraud in revenue recognition.

We extend this presumption to the
recognition of expenditure in local
government.

There is a risk that the Council could
adopt accounting policies or treat
income and expenditure transactions
in such as way as to lead to material
misstatement in the reported
revenue position.

Significant We will obtain an understanding of revenue and
expenditure controls and seek to place reliance on
internal audit work on key controls.

We will evaluate and test the accounting policy for income
and expenditure recognition to ensure that this is
consistent with the requirements of the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting.

We will also perform detailed testing of revenue and
expenditure transactions, focussing on the areas we
consider to be of greatest risk including procedures in
relation to:

The appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments;

Income and expenditure ‘cut off’; and

Accounting estimates for income, expenditure,
deferred income and provisions.

P
a
g
e

 2
7



Staffordshire County Council PwC 7

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Education Support Services
Group Accounting

From 1 April 2013 Entrust was set up
as an independent joint venture
between the Council and Capita. The
Council has a 49% share of the
company with two directors
represented on the board.

For 2013/14 the Council will need to
recognise the investment in the
balance sheet following the
requirements of International
Accounting Standard (IAS) 28
Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures. This will require the
Council to consider:

The initial recognition of the cost
of the investment in Entrust and
valuation at 31 March 2014;

Consolidation of the investment
in the Council’s consolidated
financial statements and the
practicalities associated with the
difference in year end date;

The requirements of IAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to
determine whether any further
impairment losses are to be
recognised with respect to the
Council’s net investment; and

The disclosures required in IFRS
12: Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities.

Significant We will review the Council’s assessment of recognition
the investment against the requirements of IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. We will
review the calculation of the valuation of the investment
in Entrust recognised in the Council’s financial
statements.

We will gain an understanding of the method of
consolidation applied and the associated adjustments
including:

Inter-group transactions to ensure that any
gains/losses resulting from these transactions have
been eliminated; and

Consistency in accounting policies for transactions
and events.

This will include testing the integrity of the numbers in
the consolidation process, and consideration of the
financial information used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. As the date of the financial
statements of Entrust (31 December) is different to those
of the Council we will review the adjustment made for the
effects of significant transactions/events that occur
between the 31 December and 31 March.

We will review the Council’s assessment of whether any
further impairment losses are required with respect to the
investment in Entrust.

Reviewing the disclosures within the financial statements
to ensure that these meet the requirements of IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities.

P
a
g
e

 2
8



Staffordshire County Council PwC 8

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

New PFI waste scheme
The Joint Municipal Waste
Management Strategy for
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent
published in 2007 highlighted the
need for the development of a
municipal waste treatment facility.

In response, the Council
implemented Project W2R (Waste to
Resources). This resulted in the
development of an Energy from
Waste Plant facility which converts
residual waste primarily into
electricity.

The project has been funded under a
Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
scheme with Veolia which was
agreed on 29 July 2010.

The Council has three existing PFI
schemes which meet the criteria of
IFRIC 12, and are expecting to bring
the waste PFI scheme on to the
Balance Sheet during 2013/14.

Elevated We will review the project to ensure that this meets the
criteria of IFRIC 12 and is able to be accounted for as on-
balance sheet.

We will examine the model and the assumptions which
have been used to ensure the appropriateness of the
treatment which has been applied to this scheme.

We will examine the accounting entries which have been
made in the financial statements.

P
a
g
e

 2
9



Staffordshire County Council PwC 9

Main Council Audit Other Audit Code Responsibilities Risks

Risk Audit approach

The Medium Term Financial Strategy and savings requirements
The Council’s recently updated MTFS, currently in draft, includes £171.5 million
of efficiency savings over the next three years, with a further £5.9 million of
funding gap to be met by additional savings over the same period.

The Council has identified a number of risks associated with the MTFS including:

The uncertainty about how much funding will be received from Government;

The Integration Transformation Fund and the uncertainty surrounding the
method of distribution and how much the Council’s share will be;

The impact on income from Business Rates in the current economic climate;

The potential impact of borough and district councils being unable to collect all
council tax owed from those affected by the government’s decision to localise
council tax benefit support;

Spending exceeding budgets and/or income falling short of budgets;

Savings options identified and assumed in the MTFS not being achieved;

The impact of the current economic climate, including increased inflationary
pressures, interest rate changes, reduced levels of income from fees and
charges for council services;

Increased demand for council services above estimates, including the impact of
welfare benefit changes;

Impact of any cost transference from other agencies to the council;

Expected income from other agencies not materialising; and

Lack of clarity regarding future capital funding, potential restrictions on
borrowing and the use of TIF powers.

Effectively managing these risks is critical to the Council’s future financial
resilience. Consideration of this area will therefore form a key part of our
assessment on your arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of Council resources.

We will review your updated MTFS
and its key assumptions. We will
benchmark your inflation, growth
and efficiency projections as well as
your reserve balances. We will
feedback our findings to the
Director of Finance and Resources.

We will regularly review in-year
finance reports (including those
which specifically monitor the
Council’s progress in delivering its
savings plans), identify key issues
and consider their impact on
budgets and plans.

We will consider the findings of our
detailed testing on the Council’s
estimates, provisions and journals
undertaken as part of our final
accounts audit work. If any of
these have a significant impact
upon the Council’s financial plans
we will feedback our findings to
you.

We will maintain a watching brief
on the Council’s financial
management arrangements in
relation to any significant new
areas of spend, such as public
health.

P
a
g
e

 3
0



Staffordshire County Council PwC 10

Risk Audit approach

Education Support Services Joint Venture
On 1 April 2013, Education Support Services (ESS) previously provided by the
Council were transferred to Entrust, following the selection by Cabinet of Capita
as a preferred bidder for the ESS joint venture on 5 December 2012.

Our 2012/13 audit considered the steps the Council had taken to satisfy itself that
its proposals represented value for money to the Council. Our review considered:

The business case for the decision;

The advice (including legal and financial) gained as part of the decision making
process;

How the Council appraised its options (including how future associated costs
and benefits were estimated);

How the Council managed risk; and

The impact on the Council’s medium term financial plans and the Council’s
procurement processes.

On the basis of the work performed above and other findings we were able to
conclude that the Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources and therefore issued
an unqualified 2012/13 conclusion on the Council’s arrangements for its Use of
Resources.

Since 1 April 2013, the Council have been a shareholder, customer, provider and
commissioner of the joint venture Entrust. During the 2013/14 financial year, the
Council will need to maintain its focus on embedding its arrangements to ensure
that ongoing risks are effectively managed. The joint venture is still in its early
phases and arrangements are likely to have evolved and developed during the
year, as lessons are learnt and ways of working become more established.

We will update our understanding
of how in practice the joint venture
has impacted on the Council’s
medium term financial plans.

Our work in particular will focus
on:

How the Council’s governance
arrangements for the joint
venture have evolved and
developed post transfer; and

How the Council have
continued to manage the risks
associated with the joint
venture.

We will feedback the results of our
work to the Director of Finance and
Resources and the Audit and
Standards Committee as part of our
ISA 260 report.

P
a
g
e

 3
1



Staffordshire County Council PwC 11

Pension Fund Audit Financial Statements Risks

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Management override of
controls

ISA (UK&I) 240 requires that we
plan our audit work to consider
the risk of fraud, which is
presumed to be a significant risk
in any audit. In every
organisation, management may
be in a position to override the
routine day to day financial
controls. Accordingly, for all of
our audits, we consider this risk
and adapt our audit procedures
accordingly.

Significant We will perform procedures to;

Review the appropriateness of accounting policies
and estimation bases, focusing on any changes not
driven by amendments to reporting standards;

Test the appropriateness of journal entries;

Review accounting estimates for biases and
evaluate whether circumstances producing any bias,
represent a risk of material misstatement due to
fraud;

Evaluate the business rationale underlying
significant transactions; and

Perform ‘unpredictable’ procedures.

We may perform other audit procedures if necessary.

Valuation of hard to value
investments

The Pension Fund holds a
mixture of categories of
investment within the Pension
Fund portfolio. For a proportion
of these assets a readily available
market price is not always
available.

Elevated We will review the monitoring procedures in place over
these categories of investments with management.

We will confirm the valuation of the hard to value
investments at year end with the individual investment
managers; and assess the accuracy of the year end valuation
by reviewing the latest audited accounts to information
provided to management to assess the reasonableness of
these unit prices.

We will review the latest investment manager controls
reports where available; to update our understanding of
controls and procedures in place over valuation of such
assets.

P
a
g
e

 3
2



Staffordshire County Council PwC 12

Intelligent scoping
Materiality

£m

Overall materiality 14.0

Clearly trivial reporting de
minimis

0.7

We set overall materiality to assist our planning of the overall
audit strategy and to assess the impact of any adjustments
identified.

Overall materiality has been set at 1% of total expenditure for
the year ended 31 March 2013. We will update this
assessment as necessary in light of the Authority’s actual
results.

Overall materiality for the pension fund audit has been set at
1% of net assets for the year ended 31 March 2014. We will
update this assessment as necessary in light of the
Authority’s actual results. This has been adjusted to the lower
materiality used for the county council in order to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements are not materially
misstated.

ISA (UK&I) 450 (revised) requires that we record all
misstatements identified except those which are “clearly
trivial” i.e. those which we do expect not to have a material
effect on the financial statements even if accumulated. We
would like to seek the Audit Committee’s views on this de
minimis threshold.

Overall
Materiality:
£14.0 million

Pension Fund
Overall
Materiality:
£14.0 million

Triviality: £0.7
million

P
a
g
e

 3
3



Staffordshire County Council PwC 13

Robust Testing
Where we do our work
As previously mentioned our audit is risk based which means
we focus our work on those areas which, in our judgement,
are most likely to lead to a material misstatement. In
summary, we will:

Consider the key risks arising from internal
developments and external factors such as policy,
regulatory or accounting changes;

Consider the robustness of the control environment,
including the governance structure, the operating
environment, the information systems and processes
and the financial reporting procedures in operation;

Understand the control activities operating over key
financial cycles which affect the production of the year-
end financial statements;

Validate key controls relevant to the audit approach; and

Perform substantive testing on transactions and
balances as required.

When we do our work
Our audit is designed to quickly consider and evaluate the
impact of issues arising to ensure that we deliver a no
surprises audit at year-end. This involves early testing at an
interim stage and open and timely communication with
management to ensure that we meet all statutory reporting
deadlines. We engage early, enabling us to debate issues with
you. We have summarised our formal communications plan
in Appendix B.

Value for Money Work
Our value for money code responsibility requires us to carry
out sufficient and relevant work in order to conclude on

whether the Authority has put in place proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources.

The Audit Commission guidance includes two criteria:

The organisation has proper arrangements in place for

securing financial resilience; and

The organisation has proper arrangements for
challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

We determine a local programme of audit work based on our
audit risk assessment, informed by these criteria and our
statutory responsibilities.

Annual Governance Statement
Local Authorities are required to produce an Annual
Governance Statement (AGS), which is consistent with
guidance issued by CIPFA / SOLACE: “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government”. The AGS is required to be
presented by the Authority with the Statement of Accounts.

We will review the AGS to consider whether it complies with
the CIPFA / SOLACE “Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government” framework and whether it is misleading or
inconsistent with other information known to us from our
audit work.

Whole of Government Accounts
We are required to examine the Whole of Government
Accounts schedules submitted to the Department for
Communities and Local Government and issue an opinion
stating in our view if they are consistent or inconsistent with
the Statement of Accounts.

P
a
g
e

 3
4



Staffordshire County Council PwC 14

Meaningful conclusions
We believe fundamentally in the value of the audit and that
audits need to be designed to be valuable to our clients to
properly fulfil our role as auditors.

In designing the Authority audit, our primary objective is to
form an independent audit opinion on the financial
statements; however, we also aim to provide insight.

Audit value comes from the same source as audit quality so
the work that we do in support of our audit opinion also

means that we should be giving you value through our
observations, recommendations and insights. We have set
out some recent developments in Appendix C and we will
provide other insights and observations to you in our audit
reports throughout the year.

We have also developed a Local Government Centre of
Excellence which supports your audit team in all aspects of
the audit, including sharing insight and observations gained
from audit teams across the country.

P
a
g
e

 3
5



Staffordshire County Council PwC 15

International Standards on Auditing (UK&I) state that we, as auditors, are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that
the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. The
respective responsibilities of auditors, management and those charged with governance are summarised below:

Auditors’ responsibility Management’s responsibility Responsibility of the Audit and
Standards Committee

Our objectives are:

To identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud;

To obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud, through
designing and implementing
appropriate responses; and

To respond appropriately to fraud
or suspected fraud identified during
the audit.

Management’s responsibilities in relation to
fraud are:

To design and implement programmes
and controls to prevent, deter and
detect fraud;

To ensure that the entity’s culture and
environment promote ethical
behaviour; and

To perform a risk assessment that
specifically includes the risk of fraud
addressing incentives and pressures,
opportunities, and attitudes
and rationalisation.

Your responsibility as part of your
governance role is:

To evaluate management’s
identification of fraud risk,
implementation of anti-fraud
measures and creation of
appropriate ‘tone at the top’; and

To ensure any alleged or suspected
instances of fraud brought to your
attention are investigated
appropriately.

Risk of fraud

P
a
g
e

 3
6



Staffordshire County Council PwC 16

Conditions under which fraud may occur

Your views on fraud
We enquire of the Audit and Standards Committee:

Whether you have knowledge of fraud, either actual, suspected or alleged, including those involving management?

What fraud detection or prevention measures (e.g. whistleblower lines) are in place in the entity?

What role you have in relation to fraud?

What protocols / procedures have been established between those charged with governance and management to keep you
informed of instances of fraud, either actual, suspected or alleged?

Management or other employees have
an incentive or are under pressure

Circumstances exist
that provide opportunity –
ineffective or absent control,
or management ability to
override controls

Culture or environment
enables management to

rationalise committing fraud
– attribute or values of those
involved, or pressure that
enables them rationalise

committing a dishonest act

Incentive pressure

Opportunity

Rationalisation /
attitude

Why commit
fraud?

P
a
g
e

 3
7



Staffordshire County Council PwC 17

The individuals in your PwC team have been selected to bring
you extensive audit experience from working with Local
Authorities, the wider public sector and the commercial
sector. We also recognise that continuity in the audit team is
important to you and the senior members of our team are
committed to developing longer term relationships with you.

The core members of your audit team are:

Audit Team Responsibilities

Engagement Leader

Richard Bacon

5th year on the audit

0121 232 2598

richard.f.bacon@uk.pwc.com

Engagement Leader
responsible for
independently delivering
the audit in line with the
Audit Code (including
agreeing the Audit Plan,
ISA 260 Report to Those
Charged with Governance
and the Annual Audit
Letter), quality of outputs
and signing of opinions
and conclusions.

Engagement Senior Manager

James Howse

5th year on the audit

0121 265 5956

james.howse@uk.pwc.com

Senior Manager on the
assignment responsible for
overall control of the audit
engagement, ensuring
delivery to timetable,
delivery and management
of targeted work and
overall review of audit
outputs. Completion of
the Audit Plan, ISA 260
report and Annual Audit
Letter.

Engagement Manager

Natalie Shaw

4th year on the audit

0121 265 5362

natalie.shaw@uk.pwc.com

Manager on the
assignment responsible for
managing our accounts
work, including the audit
of the statement of
accounts, and governance
aspects of the Value for
Money work.

Pensions Engagement
Manager

Richard Shearing

5th year on the audit

0121 265 5296

richard.j.shearing@uk.pwc.com

Responsible for providing
technical guidance, and is
responsible for managing
the audit to ensure we
meet the agreed timetable
and resolution of matters
arising.

Your PwC team

P
a
g
e

 3
8



Staffordshire County Council PwC 18

The Audit Commission has provided indicative scale fees for
Local Authorities for the year ended 31 March 2014. No
changes to the work programme have been proposed
therefore scale audit fees for have been set at the same level
as the fees applicable for 2012/13.

Our indicative audit fee, as agreed in our audit fee letter
dated 16 April 2013 compared to the actual fee for 2012/13 is
as follows:

Audit fee Actual
fee

2012/13

£

Indicative
fee

2013/14

£

Audit work performed under
the Code of Audit Practice

- Statement of Accounts

- Conclusion on the ability of the
organisation to secure proper
arrangements for the economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources

- Whole of Government Accounts

146,340 146,340

Pension Fund 28,637 28,637

Certification of Claims and
Returns

4,250 6,500

Sub - Total Audit Code work 179,227 181,477

Additional local risk based audit
work – transfer of adult services

2,325 0

Additional local risk based audit

work – ESS joint venture

Use of Resources

Group Accounting

Follow Up Use of Resources

7,675

6,930

1,620

Additional local risk based audit
work – new PFI waste scheme

0 2,948

Other targeted risk work (1) 0 0 – 7,500

Sub – Total Audit Fees (2) 189,227 192,975 –
200,475

Planned non-audit work 0 0

Total fees (audit and non-
audit work) (3)

189,227 192,975 –
200,475

Note 1 - We have discussed with the Director of Finance and
Resources the degree and pace of change within the Council
and the importance of achieving change in a safe and
controlled way. This work could relate to specific risks we
identify during the audit and/or areas the Director of Finance
and Resources/Chief Executive identifies as requiring
additional audit support. In either case we will discuss and
agree the scope of this work with the Director of Finance and
Resources and report to the Audit and Standards Committee.
It is difficult at this time to predict what this further work
could be, however we have agreed with the Director of
Finance and Resources that some flexibility to undertake
further work if required would be helpful.

Note 2 – We reported to you in September 2013 in our ISA
260 “Report to those charged with Governance” that we
anticipated that our fee for 2012/13 (excluding the

Your audit fees

P
a
g
e

 3
9



Staffordshire County Council PwC 19

certification of claims and returns) would be £190,052. Our
final fee was £185,175 (excluding the certification of claims
and returns).

Note 3 - We have based the fee level on the following
assumptions:

Officers meeting the timetable of deliverables, which we

will agree in writing;

We are able to use, as planned, the work of internal
audit;

We do not review more than 3 iterations of the
statement of accounts;

We are able to obtain assurance from your management
controls;

There are no electors questions or objections (or
information brought to our attention by the public that
requires audit work);

No significant changes being made by the Audit
Commission to the local value for money work
requirements; and

Our value for money conclusion and accounts opinion
being unqualified.

If these prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation order
to the agreed fee, to be discussed and agreed in advance with
you and the Audit Commission.

P
a
g
e

 4
0



Staffordshire County Council PwC 20

Appendices

P
a
g
e

 4
1



Staffordshire County Council PwC 21

At the beginning of our audit process we are required to assess our independence as your external auditor. We have made
enquiries of all PwC teams providing services to you and of those responsible in the UK Firm for compliance matters. We have
set out below the relationships that, in our professional judgement, may be perceived to impact upon our independence and
the objectivity of our audit team, together with the related safeguards.

Other services

Support provided by PwC Value Threats to independence and safeguards in place

Delivery of three internal audit
reviews as part of the framework
contract with Internal Audit

£17,362 Self Review Threat: The reviews will be conducted by a separate
engagement team who have no involvement in the audit of the financial
statements. There is no self review threat as the results of the reviews
will not be used by the audit team as they do not impact on the
financial statements.

Self Interest Threat: As a firm, we have no financial or other
interest in the results of the Council. We have concluded that this work
does not pose a self interest threat.

Management Threat: PwC is not required to take any decisions on
behalf of management as part of this work, the work is to review,
comment and advise. We will issue a report which may contain
recommendations however it is at the Council’s discretion to
implement /create an action plan. We have concluded that this work
does not post a management threat.

Advocacy Threat: This work does not constitute a significant piece of
internal audit work and we will not be leading or directing or making
significant decisions as part of this work. We have therefore
concluded that this work does not pose an advocacy threat.

Familiarity Threat: The work will not be used by the audit team and
does not present a familiarity threat.

Intimidation Threat:We have concluded that this work does not
pose an intimidation threat as all officers and members have conducted
themselves with utmost integrity and professionalism.

Appendix A: Independence threats and

safeguards

P
a
g
e

 4
2



Staffordshire County Council PwC 22

Support provided by PwC Value Threats to independence and safeguards in place

Certification of claims and returns £6,500 Self Review Threat: The audit team will conduct the grant
certification and this has arisen due to our appointment as external
auditors. There is no self review threat as we are certifying
management completed grant returns and claims.

Self Interest Threat: As a firm, we have no financial or other
interest in the results of the Council. We have concluded that this work
does not pose a self interest threat.

Management Threat: PwC is not required to take any decisions on
behalf of management as part of this work.

Advocacy Threat:We will not be acting for, or alongside,
management and we have therefore concluded that this work does not
pose an advocacy threat.

Familiarity Threat:Work complements our external audit
appointment and does not present a familiarity threat.

Intimidation Threat:We have concluded that this work does not
pose an intimidation threat as all officers and members have conducted
themselves with utmost integrity and professionalism.

Relationships and Investments
Senior officers should not seek or receive personal financial or tax advice from PwC. Non-executives who receive such advice
from us (perhaps in connection with employment by a client of the firm) or who also act as director for another audit or
advisory client of the firm should notify us, so that we can put appropriate conflict management arrangements in place.

Therefore at the date of this plan we confirm that in our professional judgement, we are independent accountants with respect
to the Authority, within the meaning of UK regulatory and professional requirements and that the objectivity of the audit team
is not impaired.

P
a
g
e

 4
3



Staffordshire County Council PwC 23

Appendix B: Communications Plan
Planning (January - March)

Discussion of business risks
with key management and
plan detailed audit
approach.

Detailed planning meetings
with Finance, HR and IT.

Audit strategy and timetable
agreed with
management.

Presentation of the
audit strategy to
those charged

Year end audit
(July)

Detailed audit
testing.

Review of
financial
statements.

Clearance
meetings with
management.

Completion
(September)

Management letter
to the Audit and
Standards Committee
including report on
significant deficiencies in
internal control.

Statutory audit opinions.

Representation Letter.

Annual Audit Letter

Interim (March)

Update understanding of
key processes and controls.

Key accounting and audit
findings/significant
deficiencies in internal
control identified,
discussed and resolved.

Early
substantive
testing.
Update our

Audit

Cycle

Continuous Communication
• Continuous proactive discussion of issues as and when they arise; ‘no
surprises’.

• Continuous evaluation and improvement of the audit.
• Bringing you experience of sector and best practice.

P
a
g
e

 4
4



Staffordshire County Council PwC 24

The Future of Government

Delivering on the Citizen Promise
In the face of recurrent budget cuts to reduce fiscal deficits in
many countries, affordable government has become the
watchword. This means doing more for less – meeting rising
citizens’ expectations by doing things differently to deliver
services more effectively and efficiently.

Where Next for public services?
Public sector organisations need to re-evaluate their purpose
and role and decide if current visions and missions, and ways
of operating to achieve them, are relevant enough to ride the
waves of these shifts, or be overwhelmed by them.
Government and public sector organisations will also need to
respond to these shifts proactively and pre-emptively, to
avoid falling one or more steps behind.

What guides and shapes the future public body?
As such, tomorrow’s public bodies need to navigate
themselves by first formulating a strong and clear vision and
mission. Together, these will capture the organisation’s

strategic ambition and purpose and serve to influence
decisions and behaviour within the organisation.

The Local State We’re In

Over the past few years, local government has demonstrated
its ability to deliver ambitious and far reaching savings
programmes. While council Chief Executives are still holding
on to their confidence in meeting savings targets for 2013/14,
our third annual local government survey shows that
confidence in being able to protect services as well has fallen
by 40% over the past year. Beyond 2013/14, confidence in
meeting savings targets falls further.

Tough choices are ahead as the cracks begin to show and
decisions get closer to the frontline. Councils need to act
urgently to transform themselves into agile organisations and
shape a role for themselves through a future of continued
austerity.

Appendix C: Recent developments

P
a
g
e

 4
5



Staffordshire County Council PwC 25

Quality is built into every aspect of the way that we deliver the Authority audit. We take great pride in being your auditors and
in the value of assurance that the audit opinion provides. A timely, independent and rigorous audit is fundamental. This in
turn necessitates getting the basics right – clarity on audit risks, scope, resource, timetables, deliverables and areas of
judgement – which is supported by our team that has extensive experience and relevant training.

The table below sets out some of the key ways in which we ensure we deliver a high quality audit.

Procedure Description

People Quality begins with our people. To ensure that every engagement team provides quality, we use carefully
designed protocols for recruiting, training, promoting, assigning responsibility and managing and
overseeing the work of our people. We invest significant amounts of time and money for the training and
development of our audit professionals. Every new team member is carefully selected to ensure they have
the right blend of technical expertise and industry experience to support the Authority audit.

Client acceptance
and retention

Our client acceptance and retention standards and procedures are designed to identify risks of a client or
prospective client to determine whether the risks are manageable.

Audit
methodology

The same audit methodology is used for all Local Authority audit engagements, thereby ensuring
uniformity and consistency in approach. Compliance with this methodology is regularly reviewed and
evaluated. Comprehensive policies and procedures governing our accounting and auditing practice –
covering professional and regulatory standards as well as implementation issues – are constantly
updated for new professional developments and emerging issues, needs and concerns of the practice.

Technical
consultation

Consultations by engagement teams, typically with senior technical partners unaffiliated with the audit
engagement, are required in particular circumstances involving auditing, accounting or reporting
matters including matters such as going concern and clinical quality issues. In addition, we regularly
consult with our industry specialists in the Local Government Centre of Excellence and our accounting
technical experts that sit on the Audit Commission Auditors’ Group.

Appendix D: Audit quality

P
a
g
e

 4
6



Staffordshire County Council PwC 26

Procedure Description

Technical updates PwC prepares numerous publications to keep both PwC staff and our clients abreast of the latest
technical guidance.

These include:

A weekly publication covering the week’s accounting and business developments;

A periodic publication providing in-depth analysis of significant accounting developments; and

A publication issued shortly after meetings of standard setters, including IFRIC and the EITF, to
provide timely feedback on issues discussed at the meeting.

We also provide Local Government specific technical updates through regular publications issued by our
Local Government Centre of Excellence and weekly conference calls for all Local Authority engagement
teams during the final audit period. We will share our technical updates with you throughout the year.

Independence
standards

PwC has policies and systems designed to comply with relevant independence and client retention
standards. Before a piece of non-audit work can begin for the Authority, it must first be authorised by the
engagement leader who evaluates the project against our own internal policies and safeguards and
against your policy on non-audit services. Above a certain fee threshold, we then seek approval from the
Audit Commission before proceeding with any work.

Ethics Our Ethics and Business Conduct Programme includes confidential communication channels to voice
questions and concerns 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Confidentiality helps us to ensure that we
receive the candid information and that we respond with the appropriate technical and risk management
resources.

Independent
review

Our audits are subject to ongoing review and evaluation by review teams within PwC and also by the
Audit Quality Review Team (AQRT, formerly the Audit Inspection Unit). The most recent report on PwC
was issued in May 2013 and although there are some areas for development identified the general theme
was that audit quality has continued to improve. The firm has developed action plans for all areas for
development identified by the AQRT.

As auditors appointed by the Audit Commission we are also required to comply with their annual
Regulatory Compliance and Quality Review programme. The results for our 2012/13 audits are expected
in early 2014 and will be publicly available on the Audit Commission’s website should you wish to take a
look.

P
a
g
e

 4
7



Staffordshire County Council PwC 27

Smart People
We deploy quality people on your audit, supported by a substantial investment in training and in our industry programme.
The members of staff deployed on your audit have been primarily taken from our dedicated Government and Public Sector
team. These staff members have a wide and deep knowledge both of the Authority and the local government sector.

Key members of the audit team including the engagement manager have been involved in the audit of the Authority for a
number of years. This ensures continuity which is beneficial both for our people and your audit through ensuring that
accumulated knowledge remains within the audit team, improving the quality of the audit we deliver.

We use dedicated IT specialists on the audit and share their insight and experience of best practices with you.

Smart Approach
Data auditing

We use technology-enabled audit techniques to drive quality, efficiency and insight.

In 2013/14 we anticipate the work will include:

Testing manual journals using data analytics, ensuring we consider the complete population of manual journals and
target our detailed testing on the items with the highest inherent risk.

The production of a journals ‘insight report’ which shows the comparable use of journals across the organisation and
explores some of the root causes. We use the data gathered as part of our journals testing to share our findings and
observations with management.

Centre of Excellence

We have a Centre of Excellence in the UK for Local Government which is a dedicated team of specialists which advises, assists
and shares best practice with our audit teams in more complex areas of the audit.

Our team has been working side by side with the Centre of Excellence to ensure we are executing the best possible audit
approach.

Delivery centres

We use dedicated delivery centres to deliver parts of our audit work that are routine and can be done by teams dedicated to
specific tasks; for example these include confirmation procedures, preliminary independence checks and consistency and
casting checks of the financial statements.

The use of our delivery centres frees up your audit team to focus on other areas of the audit.

We have agreed a process with the Audit Commission, under which data can be off-shored to PwC Service delivery Centres in
India and Poland for the facilitation of basic audit tasks, as highlighted earlier. We have also agreed with the Audit

P
a
g
e

 4
8



Staffordshire County Council PwC 28

Commission how this will be regulated, together with their independent review of our internal processes to ensure
compliance, with the Audit Commission requirements for off-shoring. Further information is included in Appendix E.

Smart Technology
We have designed processes that automate and simplify audit activity wherever possible. Central to this is PwC’s Aura
software, which has set the standard for audit technology. It is a powerful tool, enabling us to direct and oversee audit
activities.

Aura’s risk-based approach and workflow technology results in a higher quality, more effective audit and the tailored testing
libraries allow us to build standard work programmes for key Authority audit cycles.

We are committed to using technology smartly to make our audit experience better for our clients. We have a new tool, Client
Connect, which will make your audit run more smoothly and securely. Client Connect is a web-based online workroom that
facilitates the secure exchange of requested audit documents between you and us. Further information is included in
Appendix E.

Our ‘smart’ approach underpins your audit

Smart people Smart approach Smart technology The PwC Audit

P
a
g
e

 4
9



Staffordshire County Council PwC 29

The Audit Commission appoint us as auditors to Staffordshire County Council and the terms of our appointment are governed
by:

The Code of Audit Practice; and

The Standing Guidance for Auditors.

There are six further matters which are not currently included within the guidance, but which our firm’s practice requires that
we raise with you.

Electronic communication
During the engagement we may from time to time communicate electronically with each other. However, the electronic
transmission of information cannot be guaranteed to be secure, virus or error free and such information could be intercepted,
corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete or otherwise be adversely affected or unsafe to use.

PwC partners and staff may also need to access PwC electronic information and resources during the engagement. You agree
that there are benefits to each of us in their being able to access the PwC network via your internet connection and that they
may do this by connecting their PwC laptop computers to your network. We each understand that there are risks to each of us
associated with such access, including in relation to security and the transmission of viruses.

We each recognise that systems and procedures cannot be a guarantee that transmissions, our respective networks and the
devices connected to these networks will be unaffected by risks such as those identified in the previous two paragraphs. We
each agree to accept the risks of and authorise (a) electronic communications between us and (b) the use of your network and
internet connection as set out above. We each agree to use commercially reasonable procedures (i) to check for the then most
commonly known viruses before either of us sends information electronically or we connect to your network and (ii) to
prevent unauthorised access to each other’s systems.

We shall each be responsible for protecting our own systems and interests and you and PwC (in each case including our
respective directors, members, partners, employees, agents or servants) shall have no liability to each other on any basis,
whether in contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise, in respect of any error, damage, loss or omission arising from or
in connection with the electronic communication of information between us and our reliance on such information or our use
of your network and internet connection.

The exclusion of liability in the previous paragraph shall not apply to the extent that such liability cannot by law be excluded.

Appendix E: Other engagement information

P
a
g
e

 5
0



Staffordshire County Council PwC 30

Access to audit working papers
Wemay be required to give access to our audit working papers to the Audit Commission or the National Audit Office for
quality assurance purposes.

Overseas processing of information
Recently, as with other firms, we have agreed a process with the Audit Commission, under which data can be off-shored to
PwC Service Delivery Centres in India and Poland for the facilitation of basic audit tasks. Please refer to the letter at the end of
this Appendix for further information on the types of tasks we may off-shore. We confirm that:

When work is off-shored the firm delivering the audit remains entirely responsible for the conduct of the audit. As
such the data will be subject to similar data quality control procedures as if the work had not been off-shored,
maintaining the security of your data.

All firms within the PricewaterhouseCoopers network, including the PwC Service Delivery Centres, have signed an
intra-group data protection agreement which includes data protection obligations equivalent to those set out in the
EU model contract for the transfer of personal data to data processors outside of the European Economic Area.

We shall comply at all times with the seventh principle in Part 1 of Schedule 1 to the Data Protection Act 1998.

Your audit team members will remain your key audit contacts, you will not need to communicate with our overseas
delivery teams.

The audit team members are responsible for reviewing all of the work performed by the overseas delivery teams.

We already successfully use a UK based delivery centre for financial statements quality checks and that this service
will remain in the UK.

If you have any questions regarding this process or if you require further information then please contact James Howse or
Natalie Shaw.

Quality arrangements
We want to provide you at all times with a high quality service to meet your needs. If at any time you would like to discuss with
us how our service could be improved or if you are dissatisfied with any aspect of our services, please raise the matter
immediately with the partner responsible for that aspect of our services to you. If, for any reason, you would prefer to discuss
these matters with someone other than that partner, please contact Richard Bacon, our Government & Public Sector
Assurance Lead Partner at our office at Cornwall Court, Birmingham, B3 2DT, or James Chalmers, UK Head of Assurance, at
our office at 1 Embankment Place, London, WC2N 6NN. In this way we can ensure that your concerns are dealt with carefully
and promptly. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to

P
a
g
e

 5
1



Staffordshire County Council PwC 31

you. This will not affect your right to complain to the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales or to the Audit
Commission.

Events arising between signature of accounts and their publication
ISA (UK&I) 560 places a number of requirements on us in the event of material events arising between the signing of the
accounts and their publication. You need to inform us of any such matters that arise so we can fulfil our responsibilities.

If you have any queries on the above, please let us know before approving the Audit Plan or, if arising subsequently, at any
point during the year.

Client Connect: making the audit process easier
PwC is committed to using technology smartly to make our audit experience better for our clients. We have a new tool
available, Client Connect, that we think will make your audit run more smoothly and securely. Over the last year, we’ve
successfully piloted Client Connect in several major countries around the world, including the UK, US and Canada.

Benefits to you

Client Connect is a web-based online workroom that facilitates the secure exchange of requested audit documents between
you and us. Based on the pilots, we believe that the benefits to you will be:

Your team will be able to see exactly what information has been requested by PwC, when it’s due and who’s
responsible for providing the information. Each user of Client Connect has a personalised page, showing the status of
any tasks that they’re responsible for. This makes it much easier for your team to administer the requests,
reducing the time spent on managing the audit process at your end. It also reduces the likelihood of delays to the
audit process and associated audit overruns;

The use of templates within Client Connect requests make it clear what format the requested information needs to be
in. This helps ensure requests are right first time, reducing the cost of re-work; and

All information exchanged on Client Connect between your team and PwC is encrypted as it passes across the
Internet, making thismore secure than standard email traffic.

Security and user access administration

There’ll be a dedicated Client Connect site for you, to which only your team and the PwC audit team will have access. The
security and user access management works as follows:

We’ll grant access to your Client Connect site to those of your personnel whose names you provide to us, subject to
their acceptance of specified on-line terms of usage;

P
a
g
e

 5
2



Staffordshire County Council PwC 32

Users will then be able to access the Client Connect site via any web-enabled device (work or personal) – they have to
authenticate themselves on entry to the Client Connect site;

While Client Connect is very easy to use, we’ll provide your users with access to suitable support and training to make
sure they get the best out of the system;

We’ll remove access from any of your personnel on request – your team is responsible for notifying us when personnel
leave or otherwise need their access terminated; and

Within your Client Connect site, everyone who has been granted access to that site can normally view all documents
on it.

Because requested data is normally visible to all users of your Client Connect site, we don’t plan to use Client Connect to
request any highly confidential information, such as price sensitive information, major restructuring plans/details, or
sensitive personal data. You should ensure that any of your team that use Client Connect don’t post highly confidential
information onto the site without encrypting it.

Your Client Connect site will be hosted in the PwC European Regional Data Centre. This is located in Germany and so is
subject to normal EU Data Protection laws.

We can share more information about the security over Client Connect (and how we’ve tested it) with your information
security team if that would be helpful.

Your responsibilities

Client Connect is designed to be easy for both you and us to use in practice. To make the process run smoothly and keep your
information confidential, there are certain responsibilities that we need you to carry out.

We recommend that you appoint a single point of contact who can work with our site administrator to carry out these
responsibilities.

In the course of the services, we may provide access to your staff to some of our systems. You acknowledge that your people
may be able to access our systems from any web-enabled device. You agree that you are solely responsible for:

Providing details of those of your staff you believe should have access to our systems and ensuring those people are
aware of and agree to be bound by the conditions for access;

Notifying us by email to the designated PwC contact when such personnel leave or otherwise need their access
terminated, and for periodically reviewing the access rights of your people to ensure that it remains appropriate; and

Checking that your people don’t post highly confidential information onto our systems without encrypting it.

P
a
g
e

 5
3



Staffordshire County Council PwC 33

Private & Confidential

Staffordshire County Council
No 1 Staffordshire Place
Tipping Street
Stafford
ST16 2DH

17 January 2014

Dear Andrew

Working more efficiently

As you know the Audit Commission recently tendered the audit work previously delivered by the District Audit service. This
realised significant savings which have been passed on to your organisation in a reduction to your scale fee of around 40%.

As a result of this tender, suppliers have sought for opportunities to increase efficiency, whilst maintaining the level of quality.
One principle which has recently been established is that certain basic parts of the audit can be off-shored. This is common
practice in the private sector. When work is off-shored the firm delivering the audit and thus your audit team, remains entirely
responsible for the conduct of the audit. As such the data would be subject to similar data quality control procedures as if the
work had not been off-shored, maintaining the security of your data.

Examples of the work that can be off-shored are:

Request for confirmations (Receivables, Bank or Payables);

Verification/vouching of information to source documentation (e.g. agreeing a payable balance to invoice);

Financial statements review;

Mathematical accuracy checks of data;

Research; and

Preparation of lead schedules.

Recently, as with other firms, we have agreed a process with the Audit Commission, under which data can be off-shored to
PwC Service delivery Centres in India and Poland for the facilitation of basic audit tasks, as highlighted above. We have agreed

P
a
g
e

 5
4



Staffordshire County Council PwC 34

with the Audit Commission how this will be regulated, together with their independent review of our internal processes to
ensure compliance, with the Audit Commission requirements for off-shoring.

If you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to get in touch.

Yours sincerely

Richard Bacon

Engagement Leader

P
a
g
e

 5
5



In the event that, pursuant to a request which Staffordshire County Council has received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, it is required to disclose any information contained in this
report, it will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such report. Staffordshire County Council agrees to pay due regard to any representations which PwC may make in
connection with such disclosure and Staffordshire County Council shall apply any relevant exemptions which may exist under the Act to such report. If, following consultation with PwC,
Staffordshire County Council discloses this report or any part thereof, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently wish to include in the information is
reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared only for Staffordshire County Council and solely for the purpose and on the terms agreed through our contract with the Audit Commission. We accept no

liability (including for negligence) to anyone else in connection with this document, and it may not be provided to anyone else.

© 2014 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to the UK member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each member firm is a separate
legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.

130610-142627-JA-UK

P
a
g
e

 5
6



www.pwc.co.uk

Staffordshire County
Council

Staffordshire Pension Fund

External Audit Plan 2013/14
Prepared for the
Pensions Committee

10 March 2014

A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 7

P
a
g
e

 5
7



www.pwc.co.uk

Members of the Committee
Staffordshire County Council
Wedgwood Building,
C&LL Post Room,
Tipping Street,
Stafford ST16 2DH

10 March 2014

Ladies and Gentlemen,

We are pleased to present our Audit Plan for the Staffordshire Pension Fund, which shows how your key risks and issues drive our audit and
summarises how we will deliver. We look forward to discussing it with you so that we can ensure we provide the highest level of service quality.

If you would like to discuss any aspect of our Pension Audit Plan please do not hesitate to contact Richard Bacon on 0121 265 5492.

Yours faithfully,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

P
a
g
e

 5
8



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC Contents

Code of Audit Practice and

Statement of Responsibilities

of Auditors and of Audited

Bodies

In April 2010 the Audit Commission

issued a revised version of the

‘Statement of responsibilities of

auditors and of audited bodies’. It is

available from the Chief Executive

of each audited body. The purpose

of the statement is to assist auditors

and audited bodies by explaining

where the responsibilities of

auditors begin and end and what is

to be expected of the audited body in

certain areas. Our reports and

management letters are prepared in

the context of this Statement.

Reports and letters prepared by

appointed auditors and addressed

to members or officers are prepared

for the sole use of the audited body

and no responsibility is taken by

auditors to any Member or officer

in their individual capacity or to

any third party.

Executive summary 2

Audit approach 3

Risk of fraud 9

Your PwC team 12

Your audit fees 13

Appendices 14

Appendix A: Independence threats and safeguards 15

Contents

P
a
g
e

 5
9



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 2

Background

We have prepared this audit plan to provide those
responsible for the governance of Staffordshire Pension Fund
(the ‘Fund’) with information about our responsibilities as
external auditors of Staffordshire County Council (the
‘Authority’) and how we plan to discharge them for the audit
of the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

The Staffordshire County Council acts as the administering
authority for the Fund, and as such is accountable for the
stewardship of the Fund. The responsibility for this
stewardship is discharged on a day to day basis by the
Members of the Pensions Committee (“the Committee”). It is
our responsibility to carry out an audit in accordance with
the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice (“the Code”).

Framework for our audit
We are appointed as your auditors by the Audit Commission
as part of a national framework contract and consequently
we are required to incorporate the requirements of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice 2010
for local government bodies (the ‘Audit Code’) as well as the
requirements of International Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland) (‘ISAs’).

The remainder of this document sets out how we will
discharge these responsibilities and we welcome any
feedback or comments that you may have on our approach.

Responsibilities
Officers and members of each local authority are accountable
for the stewardship of public funds. It is our responsibility to
carry out an audit in accordance with the Audit
Commission’s Code of Audit Practice (“the Code”),
supplemented by the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and of Audited Bodies. Both documents are
available from the Chief Executive or the Audit Commission’s
website.

It is your responsibility to identify and address your
operational and financial risks, and to develop and
implement proper arrangements to manage them, including
adequate and effective systems of internal control. In
planning our audit work, we assess the significant
operational and financial risks that are relevant to our
responsibilities under the Code and the Audit Commission’s
Standing Guidance. This exercise is only performed to the
extent required to prepare our plan so that it properly tailors
the nature and conduct of audit work to your circumstances.
It is not designed to identify all risks affecting your
operations nor all internal control weaknesses.

Executive summary

P
a
g
e

 6
0



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 3

Our audit is risk based which means that we focus on the areas that matter. We have carried out a risk assessment for 2013/14
prior to considering the impact of controls, as required by auditing standards, which also draws on our understanding of your
business.

We determine if risks are significant, elevated or normal and whether we are concerned with fraud, error or judgement as this
helps to drive the design of our testing procedures:

Significant Those risks with the highest potential for material misstatement due to a combination of their size, nature and
likelihood and which, in our judgement, require specific audit consideration.

Elevated Although not considered significant, the nature of the balance/area requires specific consideration.

The table overleaf highlights all risks which we consider to be either significant or elevated in relation to our audit for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Audit approach

P
a
g
e

 6
1



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 4

Pension Fund Audit

Risk Categorisation Audit approach

Management override of
controls

ISA (UK&I) 240 requires that we plan
our audit work to consider the risk of
fraud, which is presumed to be a
significant risk in any audit. In every
organisation, management may be in
a position to override the routine day
to day financial controls.
Accordingly, for all of our audits, we
consider this risk and adapt our audit
procedures accordingly.

Significant We will perform procedures to;
Review the appropriateness of accounting policies and
estimation bases, focusing on any changes not driven by
amendments to reporting standards;

test the appropriateness of journal entries;
review accounting estimates for biases and evaluate
whether circumstances producing any bias, represent a
risk of material misstatement due to fraud;

evaluate the business rationale underlying significant
transactions; and
perform ‘unpredictable’ procedures.

We may perform other audit procedures if necessary.

Valuation of hard to value
investments

Staffordshire County Council Pension
Fund holds a mixture of categories of
investment within the Pension fund
portfolio. For a proportion of these
assets a readily available market price
is not always available.

Elevated We will review with monitoring procedures in place over these
categories of investments with management.

We will confirm the valuation of the hard to value investments at
year end with the individual investment managers and assess the
accuracy of the year end valuation by reviewing the latest audited
accounts to information provided to management to assess the
reasonableness of these unit prices.

We will review the latest investment manager controls reports

where available, to update our understanding of controls and

procedures in place over valuation of such assets.

P
a
g
e

 6
2



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 5

Intelligent scoping
Materiality

£m

Overall materiality 14.0

Clearly trivial reporting de minimis 0.7

We set overall materiality to assist our planning of the overall
audit strategy and to assess the impact of any adjustments
identified.

Overall materiality for the pension fund audit has been set at
1% of net assets for the year ended 31 March 2014. We will
update this assessment as necessary in light of the
Authority’s actual results. This has been adjusted to the lower
materiality used for the county council in order to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements are not materially
misstated.

ISA (UK&I) 450 (revised) requires that we record all
misstatements identified except those which are “clearly
trivial” i.e. those which we do expect not to have a material
effect on the financial statements even if accumulated. We
would like to seek the Audit Committee’s views on this de
minimis threshold.

Robust Testing
Where we do our work
As previously mentioned our audit is risk based which means
we focus our work on those areas which, in our judgement,

are most likely to lead to a material misstatement. In
summary, we will:

Consider the key risks arising from internal
developments and external factors such as policy,
regulatory or accounting changes;

Consider the robustness of the control environment,
including the governance structure, the operating
environment, the information systems and processes
and the financial reporting procedures in operation;

Understand the control activities operating over key
financial cycles which affect the production of the year-
end financial statements;

Validate key controls relevant to the audit approach; and

Perform substantive testing on transactions and
balances as required.

When we do our work
Our audit is designed to quickly consider and evaluate the
impact of issues arising to ensure that we deliver a no
surprises audit at year-end. This involves early testing at an
interim stage and open and timely communication with
management to ensure that we meet all statutory reporting
deadlines. We engage early, enabling us to debate issues with
you.

Pension Fund
Overall
Materiality:
£14.0m

Triviality:
£0.7m

P
a
g
e

 6
3



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 6

Summary of our approach

This is not an exhaustive list of all the tests that we will perform, but summarises the main aspects:

Overall control

environment

Investments and investment
return

Contributions Benefits and

expenditure

Governance controls

Administration and

accounting controls

Service organisation
controls

Analytical procedures

Detailed testing

Independent
confirmations

P
a
g
e

 6
4



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 7

Focus area Planned response includes

Investment assets and returns

Existence of investments Understand the Committee and management monitoring controls,
including reviewing Committee meeting minutes.
Obtain independent confirmations of assets from the custodian
and investment managers.
Review internal controls reports on investment management and
custody.

Valuation of investments Test valuation of quoted investments against third party sources.
Understand how the Committee and management validate asset
values provided by investment managers for investments which are
not quoted.
Review valuations for pooled investment vehicles and private
equity investments, including reviewing the most recent audited
accounts for the funds and any available internal controls reports.

Completeness of investments Review the reconciliations of cash inflows and outflows from the
Fund’s bank account compared to contributions and other income,
benefits and expenses and the movements in investments.
Review the reconciliations performed in-house between investment
manager and custodian assets.

Performance of investments reported is consistent with the
accounts

Complete an analytical review of investment returns for
reasonableness compared with the Fund’s benchmarks and other
external indices.

Allocation of investments is in accordance with the
Statement of Investment Principles (‘SIP’)

Review the allocation of investments compared with the
requirements of the SIP.

Contributions

Payment of employer contributions in accordance
with the Rates and Adjustment Certificate and employee
contributions per the prescribed rates for local government
employees (England and Wales) (“the
schedules”)

Review the controls over payroll and validate on a sample basis
that these are operating as expected.

Undertake analytical review of contributions for reasonableness
compared with the prior year, allowing for changes in membership,
pay and rates of contributions.
Consider the monthly contributions received and investigate any

P
a
g
e

 6
5



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 8

Contributions

unusual fluctuations.
Test on a sample basis that the contributions are calculated and
paid in accordance with the relevant schedules.
Review the timing of the payment of contributions according to
bank details compared with the requirements of the schedules.

Benefits and membership

Benefits are correctly calculated according to the
local government regulations

Review the controls operated by the administration team
(including over the pension payroll) and validate on a sample basis
that these are operating as expected.
Review the internal controls report on administration.

Undertake analytical review of pensions paid for reasonableness
compared to the prior year, allowing for changes in membership
and the effects of the pensions increase.
Consider the monthly total pensions paid and investigate any
unusual fluctuations.
Perform substantive testing on a sample basis over material types
of benefit payments.

Membership statistics accurately reflect the membership of
the scheme

Review the results of any pensioner existence checking exercise
completed during the year.
Compare membership statistics and m0vements reported against
the supporting data from the administration system and review for
reasonableness compared with our expectations.

Other areas

Current assets and liabilities are appropriately accounted for Review balances compared with the prior year and against our
expectations from testing of income and expenditure.
Obtain independent confirmation of cash balances.

Review controls over cash movements and bank account authority
levels.

Related party transactions Understand the controls that the Committee and management
have over the identification of related parties and transactions with
them.
Make specific enquiries for any transactions which look to be
outside of the normal course of business.

P
a
g
e

 6
6



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 9

International Standards on Auditing (UK&I) state that we, as auditors, are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that
the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. The
respective responsibilities of auditors, management and those charged with governance are summarised below:

Auditors’ responsibility Management’s responsibility Responsibility of the Audit Committee

Our objectives are:

To identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud;

To obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud, through
designing and implementing
appropriate responses; and

To respond appropriately to fraud
or suspected fraud identified during
the audit.

Management’s responsibilities in relation to
fraud are:

To design and implement programmes
and controls to prevent, deter and
detect fraud;

To ensure that the entity’s culture and
environment promote ethical
behaviour; and

To perform a risk assessment that
specifically includes the risk of fraud
addressing incentives and pressures,
opportunities, and attitudes
and rationalisation.

Your responsibility as part of your
governance role is:

To evaluate management’s
identification of fraud risk,
implementation of anti-fraud
measures and creation of
appropriate ‘tone at the top’; and

To ensure any alleged or suspected
instances of fraud brought to your
attention are investigated
appropriately.

Risk of fraud

Risk of fraud

P
a
g
e

 6
7



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 10

Conditions under which fraud may occur

Management or other employees have
an incentive or are under pressure

Circumstances exist
that provide opportunity –

ineffective or absent control,

or management ability to
override controls

Culture or environment
enables management to

rationalise committing fraud
– attribute or values of those

involved, or pressure that
enables them rationalise

committing a dishonest act

Incentive pressure

Opportunity

Rationalisation /
attitude

Why commit
fraud?

P
a
g
e

 6
8



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 11

Your views on fraud
We would like to discuss with the Pension Committee:

Whether you have knowledge of fraud, either actual, suspected or alleged, including those involving management?

and with the Audit Committee:

What fraud detection or prevention measures (e.g. whistleblower lines) are in place in the entity?

What role you have in relation to fraud?

What protocols / procedures have been established between those charged with governance and management to keep you
informed of instances of fraud, either actual, suspected or alleged?

P
a
g
e

 6
9



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 12

The individuals in your PwC team have been selected to bring you extensive audit experience from working with Local
Authorities, the wider public sector and the Pensions Industry. We also recognise that continuity in the audit team is
important to you and the senior members of our team are committed to developing longer term relationships with you.

The core members of your audit team are:

Audit Team Responsibilities

Engagement Leader

Richard Bacon

+44 (0) 121 265 5492

richard.f.bacon@uk.pwc.com

Richard is responsible for independently delivering the audit in line with the Code of Audit
Practice, including agreeing the audit plan, the quality of outputs and signing of opinions and
conclusions. Richard is also responsible for liaison with the Leader of the Council and the
Executive.

Pensions Manager

Richard Shearing

+44 (0) 121 265 5296

richard.j.shearing@uk.pwc.com

Richard is responsible for providing technical guidance, and is responsible for managing the
audit to ensure we meet the agreed timetable, resolution of matters arising, key liaison with
senior management and managing our team.

Team Leader

Aniquah Syed

Aniquah is responsible for leading the field team, including the audit of the Pension Fund
account, Net assets statement, and governance aspects of our work. Regular liaison with the
finance team.

Your PwC team

Your PwC team

P
a
g
e

 7
0



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 13

The Audit Commission has provided indicative audit fee levels for the 2013/14 financial year. The base fee scale for our audit
of the Fund is £28,637 (2012/13: £28,637). Fees have been rebased following a procurement exercise.

We have based the fee level on the following assumptions:

Officers meeting the timetable of deliverables, which we will agree in writing;

We are able to use, as planned, the work of internal audit;

We do not review more than 3 iterations of the statement of accounts;

We are able to obtain assurance from your management controls;

No significant changes being made by the Audit Commission to the local value for money work requirements; and

Our value for money conclusion and accounts opinion being unqualified.

If these prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation order to the agreed fee, to be discussed and agreed in advance with you
and the Audit Commission.

Your audit fees

Your audit fees

P
a
g
e

 7
1



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 14

Appendices

P
a
g
e

 7
2



Staffordshire Pension Fund PwC 15

At the beginning of our audit process we are required to
assess our independence as your external auditor. We have
made enquiries of all PwC teams providing services to you
and of those responsible in the UK Firm for compliance
matters and there are no matters which we perceive may
impact our independence and objectivity of the audit team.
We have set out in the main authority Audit Plan the
relationship that, in our professional judgement, may be
perceived to impact upon our independence and the
objectivity of our audit team, together with the related
safeguards.

Relationships and Investments
Senior officers should not seek or receive personal financial
or tax advice from PwC. Non-executives who receive such
advice from us (perhaps in connection with employment by a
client of the firm) or who also act as director for another
audit or advisory client of the firm should notify us, so that
we can put appropriate conflict management arrangements
in place.

Therefore at the date of this plan we confirm that in our
professional judgement, we are independent accountants
with respect to the Authority, within the meaning of UK
regulatory and professional requirements and that the
objectivity of the audit team is not impaired.

Appendix A: Independence threats and

safeguards

P
a
g
e

 7
3



In the event that, pursuant to a request which the Staffordshire County Council has received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, it is required to disclose any information contained in
this report, it will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such report. Staffordshire County Council agrees to pay due regard to any representations which PwC may make in
connection with such disclosure and Staffordshire County Council shall apply any relevant exemptions which may exist under the Act to such report. If, following consultation with PwC,
Staffordshire County Council discloses this report or any part thereof, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently wish to include in the information is
reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared only for Staffordshire County Council and solely for the purpose and on the terms agreed through our contract with the Audit Commission. We accept no

liability (including for negligence) to anyone else in connection with this document, and it may not be provided to anyone else.

© 2014 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to the UK member firm, and may sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each member firm is a separate
legal entity. Please see www.pwc.com/structure for further details.

130610-142627-JA-UK

P
a
g
e

 7
4



PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Cornwall Court, 19 Cornwall Street, Birmingham B3 2DT
T: +44 (0) 121 265 5000, F: +44 (0) 121 265 5050, www.pwc.co.uk

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number OC303525. The registered office of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority for designated

investment business.

The Members of the Audit Committee

Staffordshire County Council
St. Chad’s Place
Stafford
ST16 2LR

February 2014

Our Reference: SCC/Cert1213

Ladies and Gentlemen

Annual Certification Letter 2012/13

This report summarises the results and fees for certification work relating to the 2012/13 financial period.

Results of Certification work

The only remaining return we certify for you is the Teachers’ Pensions Return which had a final value of

£46,703,237.

This return did not require a qualification letter and was not subject to amendment. In the main the return
and its supporting working papers were well prepared; in relation to prior year matters, we have identified no
issues of a similar nature.

We attach a summary of work for your consideration.

Yours faithfully,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

(Enclosure)

Agenda Item 8

Page 75



2

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only. To the extent permitted by law, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or

duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for the matter to which this

document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in advance.

© 2014 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. 'PricewaterhouseCoopers' refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom) or, as

the context requires, other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

Results of CertificationWork

Claims and Returns Certified

A summary of the return certified during the year and fee information is set out below. There was no

requirement for a qualification letter or amendments. The deadline for submission of certified return was

met.

CI
Reference

Scheme
Title

Form Original
Value (£)

Final
Value (£)

Amendment Qualification

PEN05 Teachers’
Pensions
Return

EOYCd 46,703,237 46,703,237 No No

The Teachers’ Pensions Return (TR17) is an annual summary showing teachers’ pension contributions

deducted and remitted by Staffordshire County Council, in the year, for all scheme members employed by the

Authority.

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme is a contributory pension scheme administered by Teachers Pensions (“TP”)

on behalf of the Department for Education (DfE).

There were significant changes to the scheme introduced from 1 April 2012 with the introduction of tiers

ranging from 6.4% to 8.8% according to full time equivalent salary (FTE). Until March 2012 teacher

contributions were at the flat rate 6.4% of contributory salary. The Return format was updated to include

information for teacher contributions broken down by tier.

The Authority did not raise any concern with the effective implementation of this scheme change.

Prior year recommendations

We have reviewed progress made in implementing the certification action plan for 2011/12 and no issues

were identified of a similar nature.

Certification Fees

The fees for certification of each claim/return are set out below:

Claim / Return 2012/13 Indicative Fee

£

2011/12 Final Fee

£

PEN05 Teachers’ Pensions
Return

4,250 8,519

It should be noted that the Audit Commission updated the fee approach for certification in 2012/13. This

applied a 40% discount to the 2010/11 billed fee.

Page 76



 

Audit Committee – 24 March 2014 

Information Governance Annual Report 

 
 

Recommendations 

 
1. This report should be accepted as a current reflection of the provision 

of Information Governance assurance for Staffordshire County Council. 
 

Report of the Director of Democracy, Law & Transformation 

 

Background 

 
1. Information Governance is the practice that allows the County Council 

to manage its information in an appropriate, efficient and secure 
manner that balances the importance of upholding confidentiality at the 
same time as promoting openness and transparency. It contributes to 
the management of risk to the Council’s reputation, avoidance of 
statutory penalties and instilling confidence in the citizens of 
Staffordshire. 

 
2. There is a comprehensive and complex legal information landscape 

within which the County Council must operate including compliance 
with the Data Protection Act 1998, Freedom of Information Act 2000, 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and other statutes. In 
addition to this, there are a number of further requirements contained 
within codes of practice and regulations dealing with a range of service 
provision. The compliance with this range of legislation is monitored 
and administered through various national commissioner roles 
including the Information Commissioner. These commissioners have 
powers to impose penalties, including monetary penalties. The number 
of public bodies and size of fines has continued to increase throughout 
2013/2014.  

 
3. Information governance is a dynamic area in terms of regulation with a 

range of new and amended requirements each year. We continue to 
ensure that practice, advice and guidance are up to date. 

 
4. The County Council has identified and promoted an Information 

Governance Framework available to staff through the Council intranet 
pages. This provides for a strategic direction in terms of managing 
information and provides detailed guidance and support for staff in 
using and sharing information.. This is particularly important as we 
continue to review how we provide and commission services. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



 

Freedom of Information  

 
5. Published statistics have shown that the number and complexity of 

Freedom of Information requests submitted to Local Authorities 
remains high and overall the amount of time consumed in 
administering the requests continues to increase. The national picture 
continues to be mirrored within the Council. The Council has a robust 
system in place for dealing with FOI requests. However as request 
numbers continue to increase this places a greater challenge to remain 
compliant with statutory deadlines. Failure to meet statutory 
requirements in this area is monitored by the Information 
Commissioners Office (the ombudsman for information legislation); 
performance in SCC is monitored on a quarterly basis and published 
on the internet. The benchmark set by the Information Commissioner 
for an acceptable service is 85% of requests answered with 20 days. 
Currently we answer 88% of requests within the 20 days and this rises 
to 92% within 25 days this is in the context of an increase in overall 
requests of requests by 40% . Freedom of Information statistics can be 
found at Appendix A. In the spirit of transparency all requests and 
responses are published on the internet. 

 

Data Protection  

 
6. Data protection is primarily concerned with personal data about 

individuals rather than general information. As a public body with a 
diverse range of people services this relates to a significant volume of 
data. As service delivery and commissioning evolve the way in which 
SCC is delivering its services has an impact on Information 
Governance arrangements. Increasingly, the County Council is working 
together with its community partners to commission and deliver joined 
up services which require sharing personal information on a large 
scale. 

 
7. The County Council Information Governance Unit took a lead and 

working with partners a One Staffordshire Information Sharing Protocol 
was developed. Information sharing protocols are agreements that 
establish mutually binding rules for the safe and appropriate sharing of 
personal information between different agencies. This single 
agreement signs up over 70 public sector bodies across Staffordshire 
and replaces several separate information sharing protocols across the 
county. The Protocol was launched in June  2013 at an event hosted 
by SCC and was attended by a representative of the Information 
Commissioner.  
 

8. An audit was undertaken in 2012 to look at access request processes 
centrally and specifically with Children and Families and presented to 
the Audit & Standards Committee in 2013. The final report highlighted 
several recommendations including process, training, guidance and 
policy updates which have been fully implemented in 2013. 

Page 78



 

 
9. Data Protection requests are currently managed both centrally and also 

within some specific service areas. In response to last year’s audit 
report a single approach to monitoring requests dealt with throughout 
the council has been adopted and ensures a consistent approach to 
addressing any issues. Details of subject access requests  The figures 
for subject access requests are included at Appendix A. 
 

10. Under section 29 of the Data Protection Act 1998, the police and 
HMRC, are able to request personal data for the purposes of 
prevention and detection of a crime and taxation. In 2013 112 requests 
have been processed. 

 

Transparency  

 
11. The County Council remains actively engaged in meeting Local 

Government Transparency requirements. We are working to meet our 
obligations under the Inspire Regulations (which requires us to publish  
geographical data) as well as reviewing information in light of the new 
statutory code on transparency which will come into force in 2014. We 
are committed to provide transparency to ensure local residents can be 
fully informed.  
 

Privacy 

 
12. A week long privacy campaign took place throughout the Council in 

June 2013 to promote key messages surrounding privacy and 
confidentiality and the importance of maintaining these when handling 
personal data of staff, service users and ourselves.  During the week, 
our privacy awareness material was on display in offices and 
communal areas throughout the County and the Information 
Governance Team were available to offer advice and guidance on; 
keeping manual and electronic information secure both within and 
outside of the office environment, application and importance of the 
Council’s Protective Marking Scheme, training materials available to 
staff, disposal of confidential waste and the consequences of 
mishandling information. 
 

13. Following on from this, the Information Governance Unit has assisted 
Families First with an ongoing campaign designed to promote Data 
Protection and Privacy within their service area. Monthly newsletters 
are distributed to staff covering topics which they have identified as 
important, intranet pages containing resources and information are 
currently being developed in order to assist staff with these issues on a 
long term basis and awareness sessions are taking place throughout 
the year.  

 

Page 79



 

Information Security 

 
14. Local Authorities continue to face challenges to ensure that appropriate 

information security is in place therefore the County Council remains 
focussed on working towards ensuring that resilient procedures are 
employed across the Authority.  
 

 
15. The Information Governance Unit record all reported security incidents 

and investigate where necessary. All incidents will be followed up with 
the appropriate Head of Service to receive assurance from the service 
that recommendations have been implemented. 

 
16. All security policies are regularly reviewed to reflect changes in 

technology and knowledge of potential threats, this involves revision of 
policies and also technical improvements to software, hardware and 
networks on an ongoing basis. 
 

17. Staffordshire County Council has successfully been granted Public 
Services Network (PSN) accreditation. PSN is a key part of 
Government ICT Strategy and accreditation means that the authority 
can continue access a secure network that facilitates the safe access 
of Government shared services. Accreditation is an annual 
requirement. 

 
18. The safety of PSN is paramount and to achieve accreditation the 

authority had to satisfy a Code of Connection containing over 60 
different security controls. The security control responses were audited 
by means of independent ICT security health checks and an onsite 
assessment. 
 

19. SCC are in the process of adding an extra layer of security by 
introducing two factor authentication (2FA) for all remote access to the 
network. When connecting remotely to the network an employee will 
need to enter their username and password as before and an 
additional pass code randomly generated by a password token.  
 

20. A detailed audit against the Audit Commission checklist has been 
completed.  The results of this have been appended at Appendix E. It 
is generally accepted that information security risk cannot be 
eradicated completely, however the audit shows a low level of risk in all 
key areas due to the wide range of measures we have in place 
demonstrating a strong level of overall security.  

 

Governance 

 
21. Training for Senior Information Risk Officers (SIROs) has been carried 

out. The SIRO role is an important safeguard to support and where 
necessary challenge on security provision across the Council. There 

Page 80



 

are currently three SIRO roles covering People, Place and Corporate 
functions. 
 

22. An Information Risk Group has been created with representatives from 
service areas to support the SIROs in delivering Information 
Governance compliance. A work plan for 2013/14 including the 
appointment of Information Asset Owners and a review of the 
Information Asset Register. The group will also be reviewing the 
requirements of the Protective Marking Scheme and the Information 
Assurance Programme. 
 

23. Information audits were undertaken in several specific areas were 
identified and work carried out. These included social networking, the 
Capita One system and confidential waste. Generally assurance was 
found to be good and any specific instances of non-compliance were 
dealt with separately. This work is on-going. 

 

Training 

 
24. New starters receive mandatory Information Governance training as 

part of the corporate ‘One Induction’ process. All staff are expected to 
complete a suite of Information Governance e-learning modules 
including Freedom of Information, Data Protection, Information 
Security, Records Management, Protective Marking and Privacy. The 
modules are reviewed at least annually to ensure information is current 
and reflects regulations and procedures and the modules have been 
classified as ‘essential’. The number of people completing e-learning 
modules is included at appendix B.  

Records Management 

 
25. After pilot testing in 2013 a new tool, Enterprise Vault,  for managing 

emails will be deployed in 2014. Enterprise Vault is an application that 
is used to archive e-mails from folders in Outlook mailboxes to another 
storage area. This enables the council to manage electronic storage 
more efficiently and ensure that we do not keep data longer than 
necessary.  
 

26. In conjunction with Staffordshire ICT a project to review data storage 
on shared filing (homefolders) has been carried out. Large volumes of 
unnecessary material stored on our ICT systems not only limits storage 
availability for legitimate purposes but can also slow working times, 
cost money and, in some cases, have Information Governance 
implications where information is not stored appropriately or kept for 
too long a period. Based on an initial project of 115 users 230GB of 
storage has so far been made available. 

Page 81



 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 

 
27. Staffordshire County Council on occasion need to carry out covert 

surveillance as part of our statutory duties. Gathering information from 
covert surveillance is governed by the  Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). There were two applications for access to 
communications data and five applications for directed surveillance in 
2013. All received approval by Magistrates. In March 2013 
Staffordshire County Council were subject to an inspection by the 
Interception of Communications Commissioners Office. The Inspector 
found no significant concerns and was satisfied that communications 
data is being acquired for the correct statutory purpose. The Inspector 
found no evidence that the Council’s powers under Part I Chapter II of 
RIPA had been used to investigate trivial offences.  
 

28. In 2013 Investigatory Powers Tribunal received a complaint that SCC 
had carried out surveillance contrary to RIPA. The Tribunal 
investigated the matter and confirmed that no breach of the RIPA had 
occurred and no further action was warranted. 

Page 82



 

 
 
Appendix 1 

Equalities Implications 

 
29. There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

 

Legal Implications 

 
30. Failure to comply with legislation or legal requirements (i.e. Data 

Protection Act, Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act) can result in 
external censure, financial loss (including fines and compensation) and 
reputational damage. 
 

31. Failure to comply with the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act can 
result in censure by the Surveillance Commissioner and complaints to 
the Investigatory Powers Tribunal. 

Resource and Value for Money Implications 

 
32. Continued adherence to good information assurance practice will help 

to ensure that the Council does not suffer financial loss through fine(s) 
for breaches. 

Risk Implications 

 
33. Any risks identified are subject to inclusion within the Authority’s risk 

register and are dealt with as a matter of priority accordingly.  
 

34. It is a key part of the Committee’s role to give assurance to the 
Authority and the council tax payers that the public resources invested 
in the Authority are being properly managed. This report is one way by 
which that assurance can be given. 

 

Climate Change Implications 

 
35. There are no implications for climate change. 

 

Report author: 

 
Author’s Name: Philip A. Jones 
Ext No:  278364 
 

Page 83



 

List of Background Papers: 

 
Appendix A – Freedom of Information Requests 
Appendix B – E-learning Training completed 
Appendix C – Information Security – Audit Commission Checklist 
 

Page 84



Appendix A 
 

Information Requests January 2013 – Dec 2013 

 

Statistic TOTAL 

Number of Freedom of Information (FOI) requests received 1178 

Number of Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) requests 
received 

800 

Number of requests that took 20 working days or less to be 
processed 

1751 

Number of request that took between 20 – 25 working days to be 
processed 

80 

Number of FOI requests not answered within 20 working days 206 

Number of EIR requests not answered within 20 working days 0 

Number of requests where 20 working day deadline extended as 
permitted in legislation – CLARIFICATION 

18 

Number of requests where 20 working day deadline extended as 
permitted in legislation – PUBLIC INTEREST TEST 

9 

Number of requests where a fee was charged 0 

Number of requests refused in full because SCC do not hold any 
of it 

149 

Number of requests refused due to vexatious 1 

Number of requests refused due to being repeats 0 

Number that were refused as costs would exceed the appropriate 
limit 

6 

FOI requests where section 22-44 was the reason for refusal 9 

Percentage of Requests answered under 20 working days 88% 

Percentage of Requests answered between 20-25 working days 92% 

  

Subject Access Requests (Data Protection Act) 174 

Percentage of Requests completed on time 76% 

 

P
a
g
e

 8
5



Appendix B 
 

 

E-Learning Modules Completed 

 
 

Training Module 

TOTAL 
Complete Strat & LD&T Fin & Res ICT People Place Public 

Leavers 
& External 

  SCC Staff 
Cust 
Serv      Health Misc   

               

                      

Privacy 915 46 11 87 1 679 35 22 34 15 

                      

Data Protection in SCC 990 47 58 33 6 773 14 15 44 37 

                      

Freedom of Information 477 10 52 13 3 343 7 14 35 24 

                      

Records Management 242 4 8 2 1 209 4 0 14 0 

                      
Protective Marking 
Scheme 1034 32 63 41 81 673 36 17 91 99 

                      

Information Security 922 12 11 9 78 748 15 14 35 25 

                      

 

P
a
g
e

 8
6



Appendix C 

Information Security – Audit Commission Checklist 

 
Question Detail Self 

assessment  
Of Risk H/M/L 

Action Lead  
Person 

VIRUSES 

1. Are our PCs and servers 
protected by anti-virus 
software? 

 
 
2. How do we ensure that they are 

regularly updated? 

PC’s and servers are protected 
Emails are scanned by antivirus software before being delivered to mailboxes 
 
 
Antivirus is automatically updated nightly with anti-virus definitions. 
Users of mobile devices are reminded in policy documents to connect to the 
network a minimum of once a fortnight to pick up updates. 

L 
 
 
 
 
L 

CIO 
 
 
 
 
 
CIO 

HACKING 

3. How are our networks and PCs 
protected from hackers? 

 
4. Have our network controls been 

tested? 
 
5. How do we monitor the 

effectiveness of our 
safeguards? 

Our network has perimeter firewalls and is protected by an Intrusion 
Detection/Prevention solution. 
 
Yes, a ‘Penetration Test’ was conducted in August 2013 by an external approved 
security company. 
 
Reports received from external testing of our safeguards are reviewed and built 
into the information security/ICT work plans. 

L 
 
 
L 
 
 
L 

CIO 
 
 
CIO 
 
 
HIG/CIO 

SABOTAGE 

6. Do we site our servers in a 
safe, protected environment? 

 
 
 
 
7. What do we do to protect our IT 

facilities from damage by 
disgruntled staff? 

 
 
 
8. How do we monitor the 

effectiveness of our 
safeguards? 

We have a fully provisioned Data-Centre and a backup/control site. Both are 
environmentally controlled and feature physical security and access controls. A 
comprehensive security audit of the Eastgate Street Data Centre was undertaken 
in 2012. All of the recommendations, including some which were structural, have 
been implemented.   
 
Data-centres are locked and only authorised staff have access. As standard 
users are not given administrator rights, which limit the amount of damage they 
could do to any systems, we also have a robust leaver’s process to remove user 
accounts when people leave the council.  Regular backups are taken so data 
could be restored in the event of deletion.  
 
Safeguards are in the form of event logs and security logs from various sources 
including server logs, IPS/IDS logs and Firewall logs. 

L 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
 
L 

CIO 
 
 
 
CIO 
 
 
 
 
CIO 

P
a
g
e

 8
7



Appendix C 

ACCESSING INAPPROPRIATE DATA 

9. Have we defined clearly what 
we regard as unacceptable 
behaviour? 

 
10. How have we communicated 

this to our staff? 
 
 
11. Does our software prevent 

access to inappropriate sites? 
 
12. How are these defined? 
 
 
 
 
13. How do we deal with reported 

violations? 
 
 
14. How do we monitor internet 

activity? 
 
 
 
15. How frequently do we examine 

internet activity logs? 
 

Yes, unacceptable behaviour is clearly highlighted in the Acceptable Use Policy 
(AUP) under headings such as ‘You must not…’  
 
 
The AUP is read and signed on joining the county council, periodically reminders 
are sent via email about acceptable behaviour and a button must be clicked to 
accept these policies when a PC is logged onto. 
 
Yes our software controls all internet access including blocking access to 
inappropriate sites. 
 
Inappropriate sites include pornography, extremist material, and sites hosting or 
promoting illegal materials. Extreme, violent or malicious content is also blocked 
along with sites that are known to host malware and viruses. Provision exists to 
‘custom’ block any sites that are deemed unacceptable for any reason. 
 
Reported violations are investigated through internet logs to find out if access to 
inappropriate sites was attempted; all such access is recorded and is sent to HR. 
 
 
Monitoring is done on a scheduled and ‘on request’ basis utilising current 
software which also has functionality built in to analyse web traffic and can be 
used to monitor internet activity. All internet activity is logged to a forensic level 
and can be retrieved and analysed if required. 
 
Reports for inappropriate internet usage are generated each month and checked 
by the Information Security team 

L 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
 
L 

HIG 
 
 
 
HIG 
 
 
 
CIO 
 
 
 
HIG 
 
 
 
HIG 
 
 
 
 
HIG 
 
 
 
 
HIG 

USING UNLICENCED SOFTWARE 

16. How do we ensure that we 
have no unlicensed software on 
our computers? 

 
 
17. Do we undertake software 

audits? 
 
18. When was the last audit and 

what was the outcome? 

Software can only be installed by users with admin rights, therefore only ICT staff 
can legitimately install software and they should be ensuring that no unlicensed 
software is installed. We also have tools to blacklist certain programmes and 
prevent them from being installed. 
 
Software audits have been undertaken in to search for unlicensed software – 
Update from Louise Hewitt on Friday 
 
In 2013 FAST undertook an audit of the Microsoft software installed on the 
network to ensure it was properly licensed.  
 

 
L 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
L 

 
CIO 
 
 
 
CIO 
 
 
CIO 

P
a
g
e

 8
8



Appendix C 

 
INVASION OF PRIVACY 

19. How have we communicated 
the key elements of the data 
protection legislation to our 
staff? 

 
20. How do we monitor 

compliance? 

Training on data protection is given to staff on induction and refresher training is 
available, there is further information on the Intranet and in leaflets, a helpline is 
provided during office hours to deal with any DP queries.  
 
Auditing of compliance is built into Access Team work programme 

L 
 
 
 
L 

HIG 
 
 
 
HIG 

FRAUD 

21. Have we identified which of our 
systems are most at risk? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
22. What additional protection do 

we provide for them? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
23. When did we last review our 

anti-fraud policies and 
procedures? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit’s annual audit planning process reviews all auditable areas across 
the County Council.  The risk assessment undertaken as part of this process 
includes an assessment of the fraud risk.   
 
In addition to the above, an annual fraud risk assessment is completed.  The 
output from this exercise informs Internal Audit’s Counter Fraud Work Plan for the 
year which identifies proactive fraud and corruption checks to be undertaken 
during the year in addition to the planned systems work. 
Community plans 
 
Management should ensure that for all high fraud risk areas, appropriate internal 
controls and checks are in place.  Such controls and checks will include for 
example:- 
 
• Management and supervisory checks i.e. monitoring/reconciliations; 
• Separation of duties; 
• Sufficient authorisation controls; 
• Maintenance of audit trails; 
• Comprehensive governance framework 
 
 
 
 
The Council’s integrity policy was last reviewed in January 2010 when the Council 
(Internal Audit) conducted a self assessment exercise on the ‘Checklist for those 
responsible for governance’ which was included in the Audit Commission 
Publication “protecting the Public Purse” This was presented to the Corporate 
Governance Working Group and an action plan produced. The action plan is due 
to be followed up during 2010/11. 
 
Other key documents which make up the Council’s Governance Framework such 
as Council’s Financial Instructions have also been reviewed during 2010/11 

L 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L 
 

HFSS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HFSS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HFSS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HFSS 
 
 
HFSS 
 

P
a
g
e

 8
9



Appendix C 

 
 
24. How have we communicated 

the essential elements of our 
policy to our staff? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
25. How do we monitor 

compliance? 

 
Induction training for new staff includes awareness of the corporate governance 
framework including the Integrity Policy.   In September 2010, the new Fraud 
Awareness E-Learning Package was launched.  This has been rolled out to 
Senior Managers within Finance and Resources.  It is intended that all Senior 
Managers (new and existing) will complete the course. 
 
The Fraud Awareness e-learning package is an effective tool to promote and 
communicate fraud awareness across the organisation and hyperlinks to key 
governance documents such as the Integrity policy, financial regulations, 
instructions etc. 
 
Members and Senior Managers are also made aware of fraud risks as well as 
changes to policies and procedures through the publication of the fraudwatch 
newsletter which is circulated twice yearly.  Senior Managers are encouraged to 
cascade the key messages contained in these newsletters to all of their staff 
including agency workers 
 
In appropriate/badly designed/missing controls as well as non compliance with 
key policies and procedures are identified through the audit activity undertaken 
during the year and formally reported to management and where appropriate 
Members 

 
L 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HFSS 

PRIVATE WORK 

26. Have we defined what we 
regard as acceptable private 
use of IT facilities? 

 
27. How have we communicated 

this to our staff? 
 
 
28. How do we monitor 

compliance? 

Yes it is described in section 3.2.1 of the new ICT Acceptable Use Policy.  The 
Acceptable Use Policy is currently being reviewed to reflect new working 
practices and technologies 
 
The policy is accepted and signed by all staff on joining the council and is 
covered in induction training. Users must also click to accept the policy when they 
log onto their PCs.  E-learning packages are also being developed  
 
Excessive personal use is monitored through the use of Internet logs and other 
logging tools. Senior Managers can ask for specific logs to be checked if they 
think there is an issue. Email logs are investigated when blocked for inappropriate 
content 

L 
 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
L 

HIG 
 
 
 
 
HIG 
 
 
HIG 
 

INFORMATION THEFT 

29. How do we protect information 
stored on PCs, servers and 
PDAs? 

 
 
 

Where necessary and on all Laptops/Tablet PCs encryption software is utilised to 
fully encrypt the Hard-Disk to an approved standard, typically 256-AES. We 
currently use industry standard software. We do not currently encrypt any 
information held on PDAs.  McAfee endpoint solution has been implemented 
across the network to ensure that USB devices, including memory sticks are 
encrypted 

L 
 
 
 
 
 

HIG/CIO 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e

 9
0



Appendix C 

30. What are our procedures for 
deleting any data held on IT 
equipment prior to its disposal? 

 
Disposal of ICT equipment is handled by the ICT Stores team who have written 
policies to follow. We have a contract with Specialist Computer Centre to dispose 
of our ICT equipment, which includes the destruction of data left on hard disks. 
Policy does dictate that sensitive information should not be saved onto local 
drives anyway, most desktop PCs are locked down to prevent local saves, all 
sensitive data should be on network storage, not the device  

L CIO 

ALL RISKS 

31. When did we last update our IT 
security policies? 

 
 
 
32. Do they address all the issues 

raised in the Audit 
Commission’s latest IT Fraud 
and Abuse update? 

 
33. How effectively have we 

communicated these policies to 
all our staff? 

2013 
 
 
 
 
Yes 
 
 
 
 
All staff are made aware of these policies through their initial induction, they are 
also advertised periodically in global emails and on the first logging into our 
systems users have to accept that they are aware of our policies and agree to 
abide by them. 
All policies are referenced in the e-learning modules.  

L 
 
 
 
 
L 
 
 
 
 
L 

HIG 
 
 
 
 
HIG 
 
 
 
 
HIG/HHR 

 
HIG- Head of Information Governance, CIO – Chief Information Officer ,HFSS- Head Financial Strategy & Support, HHR – Head Human Resources 

 

P
a
g
e

 9
1



Page 92



    

Local Members’ 
Interest 

N/A 

        

Audit and Standards Committee – 24 March 2014 
 

Procurement Regulations and Financial Regulations 

 
Recommendation 
 
1. To note the deferment of the review of Procurement Regulations and Financial 

Regulations to 31 March 2015 in order to ensure the new documents are fully 
consistent with the County Council’s Strategic Plan 2014 to 2018, its associated 
Operating Principles and Commissioning Framework.  

 
Joint Report of the Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation and the Director 
of Finance and Resources  
  
Background 
 
2. The Council’s Procurement and Financial Regulations were considered by the then 

Audit Committee on 24 March 2011 and recommended for approval to the County 
Council. 

 
3. Both Regulations state they will be reviewed at least once every two years after 

they are considered by this Committee and that minor changes can be made by   
the Director of Democracy, Law and Transformation and Director of Finance and 
Resources in consultation with the Chairman of the Audit and Standards 
Committee.   

 
Procurement Regulations 
 
4. A review of Procurement Regulations commenced during the spring of 2013 and 

whilst it was originally envisaged that only minor changes would be required given 
the relatively “static” regulatory and control framework surrounding procurement, it 
soon became apparent that there was a need to ensure the document was 
consistent with the aims and objectives of a developing “Commissioning Council”.   

 
5. Key to defining any revised control framework will be a requirement to ensure the 

roles of the Commissioner, the emerging Commissioning Delivery Hub, and 
Staffordshire Procurement are fully documented, aligned, communicated and 
understood. There is also the need to consider the impact of procurement strategy 
across the “Connected Staffordshire”.  

 
Financial Regulations 
  
6. A similar exercise has been undertaken. Whilst many of the principles contained 

therein equally apply to a Commissioning Council, the same conclusions (as per the 
Procurement Regulations) have been drawn.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 93



Proposal 
 
7. As a consequence of the above, it is intended to submit a revised set of 

Procurement Regulations and Financial Regulations to this Committee prior to 31 
March 2015. In the interim, the existing Regulations will remain in force. 

 
Equalities, Climate Change and Legal Implications 
 
8. Both documents are clearly governed by a legislative framework and make it clear 

that there is a requirement to comply with all relevant requirements. 
 
Resource and Value for Money and Risk Implications  
 
9. Procurement and Financial Regulations are key documents. Both aim to strike a 

balance between ensuring effective governance and yet, at the same time, 
maximising value for money. Clearly there can be tensions between the two, and 
effective risk management is key. Ultimately, a lack of adherence to these 
documents can lead to loss of reputation and finance and external censure. 

 
 
Report Author     
 
Author’s name: Jon Waller   
Ext. No. 6380 
  
List of Background Documents 
 
Report to Audit Committee 24 March 2011 
 

Page 94



    

Local Members’ 
Interest 

N/A 

        

Audit and Standards Committee – 24 March 2014 
 

Work Programme for the Audit and Standards Committee / Member 
Training Update 

 
Recommendations 
 
1. To consider and approve an indicative work programme for the Audit and Standards 

Committee with specific reference to its next meeting. 
 
2. To consider the need for a programme of awareness training having regard to the 

rolling work programme.  
 
Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 
  
3. The rolling work programme is attached at Appendix 1.  
 
Training Update 
 
4. The following session(s) have been provided to Members of the Audit and 

Standards Committee subsequent to the County Council elections in May 2013. 
 

• The role of the Audit and Standards Committee  

• Understanding the Statement of Accounts 
 
Equalities, Climate Change, Legal and Resource and Value for Money Implications 
 
5 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 
Risk Implications  
 
6. Good corporate governance requires independent, effective assurance about the 

adequacy of financial management and reporting. These functions are best 
delivered by an audit committee, independent from the executive and scrutiny 
functions. Effective audit committees raise the profile of internal control, risk 
management and financial reporting issues within an organisation, as well as 
providing a forum for the discussion of issues raised by internal and external 
auditors. In addition, they enhance public trust and confidence in the financial 
governance of an authority. In order to discharge their responsibilities, it is vital that 
audit committee members receive full and regular training.   

 
 
Report Author    List of Background Documents 
 
Author’s name: Jon Waller  None Specific 
Ext. No. 6380 
  
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 95



APPENDIX 1 
 
ROLLING WORK PROGRAMME OF THE AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 
16 September 2013 – Agenda 
 

Proposed Changes to the Constitution 
 

Annual Governance Statement  
 

Training Session - Understanding the Statement of Accounts 
 

2012/13 Statement of Accounts 
 

Report to those Charged with Governance 
 

Single Person Council Tax Discount Exercise 
 

Work Programme for the Audit and Standards Committee / Member Training Update 
 

 
9 December 2013 –Agenda 
 

Annual Report on Health, Safety and Wellbeing Performance 
 

Independent Remuneration Panel Appointments 
 

Annual Audit Letter 2012/13   
 

Internal Audit Plan Update – 2013/14  
 

Future of Local Audit Bill – Update  
 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) – Progress Report 
  

Work Programme for the Audit and Standards Committee  / Member Training Update 
 

Internal Audit Reports – High Risk Reviews plus Limited Assurance Reviews plus Special 
Investigations 
 

 
27 January 2014 – Meeting Cancelled 
 
24 March 2014 –Agenda 
 

Proposed Changes to the Constitution – Recording Votes on Budget and Precept Setting 
Decisions at County Council Meetings 
  

Independent Remuneration Panel Appointments 
 

External Audit Plan 2013/14  
 

Staffordshire Pension Fund – External Audit Plan 2013/14  
 

Annual Certification Report 2012/13 
 

Annual Report on Information Governance 
 

Procurement Regulations and Financial Regulations 
 

Work Programme for the Audit and Standards Committee / Member Training Update 
 

Page 96



    

Internal Audit Reports – High Risk Reviews plus Limited Assurance Reviews plus Special 
Investigations 
 

 
23 June 2014 – Indicative Agenda  
 

Report of Independent Remuneration Panel 
 

External Audit – Update   
 

Internal Audit Outturn Report 2013/14 
 

Annual review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
 

Audit Protocol between External and Internal Audit 2014/15 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

Internal Audit Plan 2014/15 
 

Code of Corporate Governance 
 

Corporate Risk Register and Policy Statement - Update  
 

Work Programme for the Audit and Standards Committee / Member Training Update 
 

Internal Audit Reports – High Risk Reviews plus Limited Assurance Reviews plus Special 
Investigations 
 

 
 
Future Agendas 
 
* English National Concessionary Travel Scheme – Update 
* Bribery Act 2010 - Update  
* Mental Health Trust, Financial Management Arrangements - Update 
* Debt Collection System – Update 
* Auditing in a Commissioning Environment  

 

Page 97



Page 98



Agenda Item 13

Page 99

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 100



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
4
a

P
a
g
e

 1
0
1

N
o

t fo
r p

u
b

lic
a
tio

n
 b

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a

ra
g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 

o
f P

a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2

A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 1

1
2



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 1
4
b

P
a
g
e

 1
1
3

N
o

t fo
r p

u
b

lic
a
tio

n
 b

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a

ra
g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 

o
f P

a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 1
2

A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 1

3
2


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 9 December 2013
	4 Minutes of the Special Panel re: Appointments to the Independent Remuneration Panel - 26 February 2014
	5a Recording Votes on Budget and Precept Setting Decisions at County Council Meetings
	5b Members' Code of Conduct
	Code including gifts and  Planning FINAL Appdx 2 Update

	6 External Audit Plan 2013/14
	7 Staffordshire Pension Fund - External Audit Plan 2013/14
	8 Annual Certification Report 2012/13
	9 Annual Report on Information Governance
	10 Procurement and Financial Regulations
	11 Work Programme for the Audit and  Standards Committee/ Member Training Update
	13 Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2013 (exemption paragraph 3)
	14a Infrastructure plus - Invitation to Submit Final Bids
	14b Debt Recovery Processes - Legal Services Follow-up Review

